
Crow Wing County HRA Board Meeting Agenda 
5:00pm Tuesday April 8th, 2025 

Crow Wing County Land Services Building Pine/Maple Meeting Room 
322 Laurel St. Brainerd, MN 56401 

Commissioner Craig Nathan attending via WebEx at 8986 Sugarberry Creek, 
Brainerd, MN 56401 

“Our mission is to support the creation and preservation of affordable housing, economic development, 
and redevelopment projects towards a more vibrant Crow Wing County.” 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

4. PRESENTATION
a. 2024 Crow Wing County Audit: Mary Reedy, Clifton Larson Allen

5. APPROVE MINUTES (Attachment 1 – Pg. 3)
a. Approval of the Tuesday, March 11th, 2025 Meeting Minutes

6. REVIEW & ACCEPT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Attachment 2 – Pg. 7)
a. CWC HRA Balance Sheets for March 2025
b. CWC HRA Operating Statements for March 2025
c. CWC HRA Payments for March 2025

7. PUBLIC HEARING: PROPOSED SALE OF OUTLOTS E & F, BRAINERD OAKS (Attachment 3 -- Pg. 23)

Join from browser: 
https://brainerdhra.my.webex.com/brainerdhra.my/j.php?MTID=mc8ed899618fefbebeb3ce4932431b509 
Join by phone: 415-655-0001 
Meeting number (access code): 2559 771 2026 
Meeting password: zPQATpgs283 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 1 of 120

https://brainerdhra.my.webex.com/brainerdhra.my/j.php?MTID=mc8ed899618fefbebeb3ce4932431b509


8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
a. Resolution request to approve the Master PDA (fourth amendment) and Redevelopment Plan 

between the CWC HRA and Level Contracting (Attachment 4 – Pg. 25)

9. NEW BUSINESS
a. Housing Trust Fund Loan Request for Proposed Project with My Neighbor to Love Coalition 

(Attachment 5 – Pg. 71)

10. HOUSING TRUST FUND
a. Review of State Statute 462C.16 and County Ordinance #2001 (Attachment 6 – Pg. 105)

11. REPORTS/UPDATES:
a. Executive Director Report (Attachment 7 – Pg. 115)
b. Housing Trust Fund (Attachment 8 – Pg. 117)
c. Brainerd HRA/Rehab Programs (Attachment 9 – Pg. 119)
d. BLAEDC/CREDI 
e. CWC

12. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

13. NEXT MEETING May 13th, 2025

14. ADJOURNMENT

CWC HRA Commissioners: 
Katie Heppner, Commissioner - District 3 (12-31-29) 

Richard (George) Burton, Commissioner - District 1 (12-31-27) 
Tyler Gardner, Commissioner - District 2 (12-31-28) 
Michael Aulie, Commissioner - District 5 (12-31-26) 
Craig Nathan, Commissioner - District 4 (12-31-25) 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 2 of 120



Crow Wing County HRA  
BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

Tuesday, March 11th, 2025 @ 5:00pm

A regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HRA) in 
and for the County of Crow Wing, Minnesota, was held at the Crow Wing County Land Services Building, 
Pine/Maple Meeting Room and via Webex video/teleconference at 5:00 p.m., Tuesday, March 11th, 
2025. 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Heppner called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

2. ROLL CALL: Present: Commissioners Katherine Heppner, Richard (George) Burton, Michael Aulie,
Tyler Gardner, and Craig Nathan.

Others present: Executive Director Eric Charpentier, Finance Director Karen Young, Operations
Administrative Specialist Hannah Anderson, BLAEDC Executive Director Tyler Glynn, Crow Wing
County Administrative Services Director Jory Danielson, and Crow Wing County Commissioner
Jamie Lee.

3. REVIEW AND APPROVE AGENDA:

Commissioner Aulie motioned to approve the agenda for Tuesday, March 11th, 2025, as
presented. Seconded by Commissioner Burton. Motion Carried Unanimously via Roll Call Vote.

4. APPROVE MINUTES:

a. Approval of the Tuesday, February 11th, 2025 Meeting Minutes

Commissioner Burton motioned to approve the minutes of the February 11th, 2025, regular 
board meeting, as presented. Seconded by Commissioner Gardner. Motion Carried 
Unanimously via Roll Call Vote.  

5. REVIEW AND ACCEPT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
The Housing Trust Fund and financial information for February 2025 was presented by Karen
Young.

a. CWC HRA Balance Sheet February 2025

b. CWC HRA Operating Statement February 2025

Attachment 1

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 3 of 120



 
 

c. CWC HRA February 2025 Payments 
 
  Commissioner Aulie motioned to accept the February financial statements as   
  submitted. Seconded by Commissioner Burton. Motion Carried Unanimously via Roll  
  Call Vote. 
 

6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  
a. Resolution Request to Accept the Conveyance of the Outlots E & F from the Brainerd 

HRA 
   The resolution request was presented by John Schommer. 
 

  Commissioner Gardner inquired if the amended Master PDA will be presented to the 
 board at a future meeting. Charpentier confirmed that it will be, along with most of the 
 procedural steps to convey the outlots. Commissioner Aulie sought clarification on if the 
 board can accept conveyance of the outlots before the Brainerd HRA approves the 
 conveyance. Schommer confirmed that the board can make this motion, as legal has 
 drafted and approved the documents and process. 

 
  Commissioner Aulie motioned to approve Resolution 2025-01 accepting conveyance of 

 Outlots E & F from Brainerd HRA and adding it to the PDA to convey this property to 
 the developer for the construction of additional housing units, as presented. Seconded 
 by Commissioner Burton. Motion Carried Unanimously via Roll Call Vote. 

  
7. NEW BUSINESS: None 

 
8. REPORTS: 

a. Executive Director Report 
The executive director’s report was presented by Eric Charpentier. 
 
Commissioner Gardner inquired on whether the HRA has looked for other funding 
opportunities for the Outlot E & F project. Eric Charpentier advised that staff applied for 
the Workforce Housing Grant, and it was not awarded. 
 

b. Housing Trust Fund Report 
The housing trust fund report was presented by Eric Charpentier. 

 
  Commissioner Burton asked for more information on the applicant who was over the  
  income limitations. Schommer provided more information on the process: Applications  
  are received with financial information, then when funding is available, updated  
  financial information is received, and at that point this applicant was over the income  
  limit.  
 
  Commissioner Gardner inquired about more information on the down payment   
  assistance program and process. Schommer advised that the down payment assistance  
  funding comes from the Housing Trust Fund. The process timeframe is 2 weeks at  
  minimum. If the borrower’s request is over $50,000, it is brought to the board for  
  approval. Charpentier added that many potential borrowers start with lender financing  
  options, then come to the HRA for down payment assistance if needed. The board can  

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 4 of 120



modify  the guidelines for board approval. There was further discussion on the Housing 
Trust Fund and history of the program. 

c. Brainerd HRA/Rehab Programs:
The rehab report was presented by John Schommer.

d. BLAEDC/CREDI:
February 2025 staff time billing reports were presented along with an overview of office
happenings by Tyler Glynn.

e. CWC:
Crow Wing County updates were presented by Jory Danielson and Crow Wing County
Commissioner Jamie Lee.

Crow Wing County Commissioner Lee reported that he would like to see more
movement on rehabilitation projects.

9. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS:

Commissioner Gardner asked if staff could schedule time to discuss the Housing Trust Fund 
program in more detail at a future meeting. Charpentier responded that he will discuss 
adding it as an agenda item with Chair Heppner. 

10. NEXT MEETING: Tuesday, April 8th, 2025

11. ADJOURNMENT:

Commissioner Burton motioned to adjourn the meeting. Seconded by Commissioner Gardner.
Motion Carried Unanimously via Roll Call Vote. Meeting was adjourned at 5:40 PM.

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 5 of 120



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 6 of 120



To: CWC HRA Board Members 

From: Karen Young, Finance Director 

Date: April 2, 2025 

Re: Review and Accept Financial Statements

Housing Trust Fund (HTF) Loan Payoff 
Reflected in the March financial statements is the loan payoff for a HTF owner-occupied rehab 
loan in the amount of $21,216. 

2024 Audit  
The 2024 audit has been finalized.  Mary Reedy will attend the April meeting to present the audit 
to the board.   

Action Requested:  Accept the 2024 audited financial statements. 

Action Requested:  Accept the March financial statements as submitted. 

Attachment 2

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 7 of 120



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 8 of 120



Approved Applications:

Revenue Sources: New Construction 1,300,000.00$    

Levy Approved Total 2,600,000.00$    Total 1,300,000.00$    

CWC Local Housing Aid 314,992.00$        Balance 289,287.00$       

Interest Earned To Date 51,414.00$         

Total 2,966,406.00$    Other Funding Sources:

TIF ‐ RLF 450,601.68$       

Loans Awarded: CWC ‐ 2025 SAHA 67,171.00$          

Rehabilitation (8) 172,119.00$        MH Funding ‐$                      

Down Payment Assistance (7) 140,000.00$        Total 517,772.68$       

   New Construction (1) 1,000,000.00$    Balance 807,059.68$       

Total 1,312,119.00$   

Applications:

Allowable Admin  (2.5% of levy) 65,000.00$          Creekside Comm. (12) 382,000.00$       

Owner Occupied (3) 75,000.00$          

Remaining Balance 1,589,287.00$    Rental Rehab  (8) 120,000.00$       

Owner Occupied (2) 50,000.00$          

Rental Rehab (6) 75,000.00$          

Rental Rehab (7) 175,000.00$       

Total 877,000.00$       

Balance (69,940.32)$        

Housing Trust Fund Projection

HTF ‐ Funding Breakdown

Rehab
6%

DPA
5%

New Construction
34%

Allowable Admin
2%

Remaining Balance
53%

HTF ‐ Funding Breakdown

Rehab Loans Awarded

DPA Loans Awarded

New Construction Loans Awarded

Allowable Admin

Remaining Balance

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 9 of 120



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 10 of 120



Crow Wing County HRA

Balance Sheet

Program: 850 - Crow Wing County HRA          Project: 1. General Fund

March 2025

Period Amount Balance

ASSETS

Cash - A/R General Fund (15,527.87) 336,549.00

TOTAL ASSETS (15,527.87) 336,549.00

LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

SURPLUS

Income & Expense Summary (Current Year) (15,527.87) (47,541.82)

Retained Earnings 0.00 384,090.82

TOTAL SURPLUS (15,527.87) 336,549.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS (15,527.87) 336,549.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS (15,527.87) 336,549.00

PROOF 0.00 0.00

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 11 of 120



Crow Wing County HRA

Operating Statement

Three Months Ending 03/31/2025

Program: 850 - Crow Wing County HRA          Project: 1. General Fund

Period Period Period YTD YTD YTD Annual Remaining

Amount Budget Variance Amount Budget Variance Budget Budget

INCOME

Interest Revenue 1,375.97 166.67 1,209.30 4,627.50 500.00 4,127.50 2,000.00 2,627.50

Property Tax Revenue 0.00 33,387.08 (33,387.08) 0.00 100,161.25 (100,161.25) 400,645.00 (400,645.00)

TOTAL INCOME 1,375.97 33,553.75 (32,177.78) 4,627.50 100,661.25 (96,033.75) 402,645.00 (398,017.50)

EXPENSES

4110.000 Admin Salaries 450.00 375.00 (75.00) 600.00 1,125.00 525.00 4,500.00 3,900.00

Legal 123.00 833.33 710.33 123.00 2,500.00 2,377.00 10,000.00 9,877.00

Staff Training 0.00 125.00 125.00 0.00 375.00 375.00 1,500.00 1,500.00

Travel 1.40 33.33 31.93 1.40 100.00 98.60 400.00 398.60

Auditing Fees 0.00 791.67 791.67 0.00 2,375.00 2,375.00 9,500.00 9,500.00

Management Fee 16,195.00 16,195.00 0.00 48,585.00 48,585.00 0.00 194,340.00 145,755.00

4190.000 Other Admin Exp 0.00 16.67 16.67 0.00 50.00 50.00 200.00 200.00

TIF Expense 100.00 50.00 (50.00) 100.00 150.00 50.00 600.00 500.00

Insurance 0.00 291.67 291.67 2,714.00 875.00 (1,839.00) 3,500.00 786.00

ER FICA 34.44 29.17 (5.27) 45.92 87.50 41.58 350.00 304.08

4590.000 Other General Exp 0.00 12,315.00 12,315.00 0.00 36,945.00 36,945.00 147,780.00 147,780.00

TOTAL EXPENSES 16,903.84 31,055.84 14,152.00 52,169.32 93,167.50 40,998.18 372,670.00 320,500.68

SURPLUS (15,527.87) 2,497.91 (18,025.78) (47,541.82) 7,493.75 (55,035.57) 29,975.00 (77,516.82)

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 12 of 120



Crow Wing County HRA

Balance Sheet

Program: 850 - Crow Wing County HRA          Project: 2. SCDP

March 2025

Period Amount Balance

ASSETS

Cash - A/R General Fund 0.00 108,473.43

TOTAL ASSETS 0.00 108,473.43

LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

SURPLUS

Retained Earnings 0.00 108,473.43

TOTAL SURPLUS 0.00 108,473.43

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS 0.00 108,473.43

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS 0.00 108,473.43

PROOF 0.00 0.00

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 13 of 120



Crow Wing County HRA

Operating Statement

Three Months Ending 03/31/2025

Program: 850 - Crow Wing County HRA          Project: 2. SCDP

Period Period Period YTD YTD YTD Annual Remaining

Amount Budget Variance Amount Budget Variance Budget Budget

INCOME

Other Income 0.00 750.00 (750.00) 0.00 2,250.00 (2,250.00) 9,000.00 (9,000.00)

TOTAL INCOME 0.00 750.00 (750.00) 0.00 2,250.00 (2,250.00) 9,000.00 (9,000.00)

EXPENSES

SCDP Expense 0.00 750.00 750.00 0.00 2,250.00 2,250.00 9,000.00 9,000.00

TOTAL EXPENSES 0.00 750.00 750.00 0.00 2,250.00 2,250.00 9,000.00 9,000.00

SURPLUS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 14 of 120



Crow Wing County HRA

Balance Sheet

Program: 850 - Crow Wing County HRA          Project: 3. Revolving Fund - TIF

March 2025

Period Amount Balance

ASSETS

Cash - A/R General Fund 1,442.02 450,601.68

TOTAL ASSETS 1,442.02 450,601.68

LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

SURPLUS

Income & Expense Summary (Current Year) 1,442.02 4,014.70

Retained Earnings 0.00 446,586.98

TOTAL SURPLUS 1,442.02 450,601.68

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS 1,442.02 450,601.68

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS 1,442.02 450,601.68

PROOF 0.00 0.00

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 15 of 120



Crow Wing County HRA

Operating Statement

Three Months Ending 03/31/2025

Program: 850 - Crow Wing County HRA          Project: 3. Revolving Fund - TIF

Period Period Period YTD YTD YTD Annual Remaining

Amount Budget Variance Amount Budget Variance Budget Budget

INCOME

Interest Revenue 1,342.02 833.33 508.69 4,014.70 2,500.00 1,514.70 10,000.00 (5,985.30)

TOTAL INCOME 1,342.02 833.33 508.69 4,014.70 2,500.00 1,514.70 10,000.00 (5,985.30)

EXPENSES

TIF Expense (100.00) 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL EXPENSES (100.00) 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SURPLUS 1,442.02 833.33 608.69 4,014.70 2,500.00 1,514.70 10,000.00 (5,985.30)

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 16 of 120



Crow Wing County HRA

Balance Sheet

Program: 850 - Crow Wing County HRA          Project: 4. Development Fund

March 2025

Period Amount Balance

ASSETS

Accounts Receivable Other 0.00 23.00

Cash - A/R General Fund 0.00 (27.90)

Land Held for Resale 0.00 14,033.20

TOTAL ASSETS 0.00 14,028.30

LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

LIABILITIES

Def'd Inflow of Resources 0.00 14,033.20

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00 14,033.20

SURPLUS

Income & Expense Summary (Current Year) 0.00 (4.90)

TOTAL SURPLUS 0.00 (4.90)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS 0.00 14,028.30

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS 0.00 14,028.30

PROOF 0.00 0.00

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 17 of 120



Crow Wing County HRA

Operating Statement

Three Months Ending 03/31/2025

Program: 850 - Crow Wing County HRA          Project: 4. Development Fund

Period Period Period YTD YTD YTD Annual Remaining

Amount Budget Variance Amount Budget Variance Budget Budget

INCOME

Development Revenue 0.00 5,916.67 (5,916.67) 0.00 17,750.00 (17,750.00) 71,000.00 (71,000.00)

TOTAL INCOME 0.00 5,916.67 (5,916.67) 0.00 17,750.00 (17,750.00) 71,000.00 (71,000.00)

EXPENSES

Legal 0.00 208.33 208.33 0.00 625.00 625.00 2,500.00 2,500.00

Travel 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.90 0.00 (4.90) 0.00 (4.90)

Contracts Costs 0.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 300.00 300.00 1,200.00 1,200.00

Closing Costs 0.00 83.33 83.33 0.00 250.00 250.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

4592.000 SAC/WAC/Park Fees 0.00 833.33 833.33 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

Development Expense 0.00 4,691.67 4,691.67 0.00 14,075.00 14,075.00 56,300.00 56,300.00

TOTAL EXPENSES 0.00 5,916.66 5,916.66 4.90 17,750.00 17,745.10 71,000.00 70,995.10

SURPLUS 0.00 0.01 (0.01) (4.90) 0.00 (4.90) 0.00 (4.90)

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 18 of 120



Crow Wing County HRA

Balance Sheet

Program: 850 - Crow Wing County HRA          Project: 5. Housing Trust Fund

March 2025

Period Amount Balance

ASSETS

Cash - A/R General Fund 24,731.25 1,225,141.21

1141.000 HTF Loan Receivable (21,216.00) 1,312,119.00

TOTAL ASSETS 3,515.25 2,537,260.21

LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

SURPLUS

Income & Expense Summary (Current Year) 3,515.25 10,335.03

Retained Earnings 0.00 2,526,925.18

TOTAL SURPLUS 3,515.25 2,537,260.21

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS 3,515.25 2,537,260.21

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS 3,515.25 2,537,260.21

PROOF 0.00 0.00

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 19 of 120



Crow Wing County HRA

Operating Statement

Three Months Ending 03/31/2025

Program: 850 - Crow Wing County HRA          Project: 5. Housing Trust Fund

Period Period Period YTD YTD YTD Annual Remaining

Amount Budget Variance Amount Budget Variance Budget Budget

INCOME

Interest Revenue 3,586.65 250.00 3,336.65 10,406.43 750.00 9,656.43 3,000.00 7,406.43

Property Tax Revenue 0.00 33,333.33 (33,333.33) 0.00 100,000.00 (100,000.00) 400,000.00 (400,000.00)

TOTAL INCOME 3,586.65 33,583.33 (29,996.68) 10,406.43 100,750.00 (90,343.57) 403,000.00 (392,593.57)

EXPENSES

Legal 0.00 81.25 81.25 0.00 243.75 243.75 975.00 975.00

Travel 71.40 2.08 (69.32) 71.40 6.25 (65.15) 25.00 (46.40)

HTF Expense 0.00 1,583.33 1,583.33 0.00 4,750.00 4,750.00 19,000.00 19,000.00

TOTAL EXPENSES 71.40 1,666.66 1,595.26 71.40 5,000.00 4,928.60 20,000.00 19,928.60

SURPLUS 3,515.25 31,916.67 (28,401.42) 10,335.03 95,750.00 (85,414.97) 383,000.00 (372,664.97)

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 20 of 120



Crow Wing County HRA

Payment Summary Report 

March 2025

Payment
Number

Payment
Date

Vendor Description  Check Amount

167 3/6/2025 John Schommer Mileage 72.80$  
27101 3/6/2025 Kennedy & Graven,  Chartered Crosby SCDP Loan Payoff 123.00$  

Total 195.80$  

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 21 of 120



This page intentionally left blank. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 22 of 120



4896-8380-4714.1  

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CROW WING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) of the Housing and 
Redevelopment Authority in and for the County of Crow Wing (the “HRA”), will hold a public hearing on 
Tuesday, April 8, 2025, at or after 5:00 P.M. Pine/Maple Meeting Room, located in the Land Services 
Building, 322 Laurel Street, Brainerd, Minnesota, to consider a proposal for the conveyance of land located in 
the City of Brainerd and legally described as Outlots E and F, Brainerd Oaks, Crow Wing County, 
Minnesota. 

The proposed terms of the conveyance are available for review by the public at the office of the 
Executive Director of the HRA on and after the date of this notice. 

At the time and place fixed for the public hearing, the Board will give all persons who appear at the 
hearing an opportunity to express their views with respect to the proposal.  In addition, interested persons 
may direct any questions or file written comments respecting the proposal with the Executive Director of the 
HRA, at or prior to said public hearing. 

Dated:  April 8th, 2025 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AND 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY IN AND 
FOR THE COUNTY OF CROW WING 

/s/ Eric Charpentier ____________________ 
Executive Director 

Attachment 3

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 23 of 120



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 24 of 120



To: Crow Wing County HRA Board Members 
From: John Schommer, Rehab & Maintenance Director 
Date: April 2, 2025 
Re: Outlots E and F in Brainerd Oaks 

At their March 20, 2025 meeting, the Brainerd HRA board approved a resolution conveying Outlots E 
and F to CWC HRA and approving the grant agreement outlining how the funds each board has 
committed to the installation of infrastructure, is to be administered.  Resolution 2025-02 (attachment 
4d) combines and accomplishes the last steps of approving the fourth amendment, the sale of Outlots E 
and F to the developer, a purchase and redevelopment contract to the developer and the grant 
agreement that outlines how the funds committed by the board at the February meeting are to be 
administered. 

Action Requested:  Approve resolution 2025-02 that (1) approves a Fourth Amendment to 
Master Purchase and Redevelopment Contract, (2) approves the sale of Outlots E and F, 
BRAINERD OAKS, Crow Wing County, Minnesota, (3) approves a Purchase and Redevelopment 
Contract with Level Contracting, and (4) approves a Grant Agreement between CWC HRA, 
Brainerd HRA, and Level Contracting in connection with redevelopment of Outlots E and F.   

Attachment 4 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 25 of 120



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 26 of 120



CR195-32-934787.v1 
4902-7665-4639.1  

1 

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO MASTER PURCHASE AND REDEVELOPMENT CONTRACT 

This Fourth Amendment to Master Purchase and Redevelopment Contract (“Fourth Amendment”) is 
made this _____ day of _______, 2025 by and between the Housing and Redevelopment Authority in and 
for the County of Crow Wing, a public body corporate and politic and political subdivision of the 
State of Minnesota (the “Authority”), and Level Contracting, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability 
company (the “Redeveloper”). 

WHEREAS, the Authority currently administers its Redevelopment Project No. 1 (the “Project”), 
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.001 to 469.047 (the “HRA Act”), as amended, the boundaries 
of which are coterminous with the geographic boundaries of Crow Wing County, Minnesota (the “County”); 
and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Project, the Authority created a Redevelopment Plan for the 
Project (the “Redevelopment Plan”) providing for certain redevelopment activities to take place in the City of 
Brainerd, Minnesota (the “City”) within the Project, as shown in in Exhibit A to the Redevelopment Plan, 
including the area consisting of the Brainerd Oaks, Serene Pines, and Dal Mar Estates housing subdivisions. 
Following a duly noticed public hearing held by the City Council of the City in accordance with the HRA 
Act, the City Council of the City approved the Redevelopment Plan by resolution adopted on September 6, 
2016, and the Board of the Authority approved the Redevelopment Plan by resolution adopted on September 
13, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority and Paxmar-Brainerd, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company (the 
“Prior Redeveloper”), entered into that certain Master Purchase and Redevelopment Contract dated as of 
September 13, 2016, recorded in the office of the Crow Wing County Recorder on March 17, 2017 as 
document umber A-886215 (the “Master PDA”), as amended by a First Amendment to Master Purchase and 
Redevelopment Contract dated November 8, 2016, recorded in the office of the Crow Wing County Recorder 
on March 17, 2017 as document number A-886216, as further amended by a Second Amendment to Master 
Purchase and Redevelopment Contract dated March 14, 2017, recorded in the office of the Crow Wing 
County Recorder on March 17, 2017 as document number A-886217, as further amended by a Third 
Amendment to Master Purchase and Redevelopment Contract dated April 12, 2022, recorded in the office of 
the Crow Wing County Recorder on June 20, 2023 as Document No. 985256, and as assigned by the Prior 
Redeveloper and assumed by the Redeveloper pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption of Master 
Purchase and Redevelopment Contract dated October 8, 2019, recorded in the office of the Crow Wing 
County Recorder on October 17, 2019 as document number A-924227 (as so amended, assigned, and 
assumed the “Contract”) providing for the conveyance by the Authority to the Redeveloper of certain 
property located in the City of Brainerd, Crow Wing County, Minnesota (the “Redevelopment Property”); 
and 

WHEREAS, the parties have determined to further amend the Contract to add certain property 
located in the City, described as Outlots E and F, Brainerd Oaks, Crow Wing County, Minnesota (the “Outlot 
E” and “Outlot F,” respectively, and together, the “Additional Parcels”), to the definition of “Redevelopment 

Attachment 4a

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 27 of 120



CR195-32-934787.v1 
4902-7665-4639.1  

2 

Property” in the Contract and described in Schedule A attached to the Contract and to provide for the 
redevelopment by the Redeveloper of the Additional Parcels and the construction thereon of owner-occupied 
and/or rental twin homes, in accordance with the Redevelopment Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual obligations of the parties 
hereto, each of them does hereby covenant and agree with the other as follows (underline indicates added 
and/or revised text; strikethrough indicates deleted text): 

1. Amendment to Section 1.1 of the Contract.  (a) The definition of “Minimum
Improvements” in Section 1.1 of the Contract is amended to provide: 

“Minimum Improvements” means the construction on each Lot of the 
Redevelopment Property of owner-occupied single-family housing with a minimum 
completed market value of $130,000 per Brainerd Oaks Lot, $160,000 per Serene Pines Lot, 
and $190,000 per Dal Mar Lot, as further described in Section 4.3 hereof; provided, 
however, that completed market values of each Lot will be dependent on the configuration 
of each Lot and may exceed these amounts.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, “Minimum 
Improvements” as to Outlot E means the construction on such Lot of a roadway and 
infrastructure necessary to access Outlot F, and as to Outlot F, means the construction on 
such Lot of 18 units of owner-occupied and/or rental single-family housing, comprised of 
nine (9) twin homes, with a minimum completed market value of $130,000 as to each of the 
twin homes. 

(b) The definition of “Redevelopment Property” in Section 1.1 of the Contract is amended to
include the Additional Parcels as part of the Brainerd Oaks Lots, as follows: 

“Redevelopment Property” means the real property so described in Schedule A 
attached hereto, consisting of eighty-five (85) Brainerd Oaks Lots, twenty-four (24) Serene 
Pines Lots, and seven (7) Dal Mar Lots. 

(c) The following definitions of “Outlot E” and “Outlot F” are added to Section 1.1 of the
Contract: 

“Outlot E” means the real property so described in Schedule A attached hereto as 
Outlot E, Brainerd Oaks, Crow Wing County, Minnesota, which is part of the Brainerd Oaks 
Lots. 

“Outlot F” means the real property so described in Schedule A attached hereto as 
Outlot F, Brainerd Oaks, Crow Wing County, Minnesota, which is part of the Brainerd Oaks 
Lots. 

2. Amendment to 3.1(a) of the Contract. Section 3.1(a) of the Contract is amended to except
from the statement that the County owns the Redevelopment Property, as follows: 

Section 3.1.  Status of the Property.  (a) As of the date of this Agreement, except 
Outlot E and Outlot F, the County owns the Redevelopment Property, and will convey title 
to and possession of the Redevelopment Property to the Authority for reconveyance to the 
Redeveloper, subject to all the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  As of the date of the 
fourth amendment to this Agreement, the City owns Outlot E and Outlot F, and has 
approved by resolution of the City Council of the City adopted on March 26, 2025 the 
conveyance of title to and possession of such portion of the Redevelopment Property to the 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 28 of 120



CR195-32-934787.v1 
4902-7665-4639.1  

3 

Authority for reconveyance to the Redeveloper, subject to all the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement.  The Redevelopment Property is described in Schedule A.   

3. Amendment to Section 3.2(a) of the Contract.  Section 3.2(a) of the Contract is amended
to revise the Purchase Price, as defined therein, to include the purchase price of $18,300.00 for Outlot E and 
the purchase price of $55,500.00 for Outlot F (for a total additional Purchase Price of $73,800.00), as follows: 

Section 3.2.  Purchase Price.  (a) The total purchase price (the “Purchase Price”) to 
be paid to the Authority by the Redeveloper in exchange for the conveyance of the 
Redevelopment Property shall be $932,8001,006,600, payable as follows: earnest money of 
$125,000 (the “Earnest Money”) will be due and payable at the time of Closing (as defined 
in Section 3.3(b)) on the first Lot conveyed pursuant to this Agreement.  Such Earnest 
Money shall be placed in escrow with Complete Title, or such other title company selected 
by the Authority (the “Title Company”), and applied to the Purchase Price of each Lot at the 
time of Closing on such Lot pursuant to the schedule of prices provided in Schedule A.  
After application in full of the Earnest Money to the Purchase Price of Lots, the Purchase 
Price for each Lot will be payable at the time of Closing on such Lot. 

4. Amendment to Section 3.2(b) of the Contract.  Section 3.2(b) of the Contract is amended
to provide that the Purchase Price for the Additional Parcels does not include City park dedication fees, City 
SAC fees, and City WAC fees as follows: 

(b) The Purchase Price for each Lot shall include (i) $500 allocated to City
park dedication fees, $1,150 allocated to City SAC fees, and $650 allocated to City WAC 
fees, which shall be disbursed by the Title Company from the Purchase Price to the City at 
Closing; (ii) a pro rata share of the then-current expenses incurred by the Authority in the 
negotiation and drafting of this Agreement and related documents, closing costs, and other 
administrative costs associated with this Agreement and not previously paid to the 
Authority, which shall be calculated by the Authority at each Closing pursuant to this 
Agreement and disbursed by the Title Company from the Purchase Price to the Authority; 
and (iii) the balance of the Purchase Price net of the total amounts described in this Section 
3.2(b)(i) and (ii), which shall be disbursed by the Title Company to the City at Closing.  The 
parties agree that the Purchase Price does not include $1,500 in additional City SAC/WAC 
fees per Lot, payable by the Redeveloper to the City at the time a building permit is issued 
for such Lot.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Purchase Price for Outlot E and Outlot F 
shall not include any amounts for City park dedication fees, City SAC fees, or City WAC 
fees, which fees shall be payable by the Redeveloper to the City.  

5. Amendment of the Contract to Update all References to Current Economic
Development Counsel. All references in the Contract to Kennedy & Graven, Chartered, shall be replaced 
with Kutak Rock LLP, with the following address: 

Kutak Rock LLP 
60 South Sixth Street, Suite 3400 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 

6. Amendment to Schedule A of the Contract.  Schedule A of the Contract is amended to
revise the real property so described therein to include the Additional Parcels and the purchase price therefor, 
and to revise the total Purchase Price (as defined in the Contract) for the Redevelopment Property as follows: 

SCHEDULE A 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 29 of 120



CR195-32-934787.v1 
4902-7665-4639.1  

4 

REDEVELOPMENT PROPERTY AND LOT PRICES 

Legal Description Price 

Lot 2, Block, 2, Brainerd Oaks $5,011.28 
Lot 3, Block, 2, Brainerd Oaks 4,366.97 
Lot 4, Block, 2, Brainerd Oaks 5,154.46 
Lot 5, Block, 2, Brainerd Oaks 3,865.84 
Lot 6, Block, 2, Brainerd Oaks 5,011.28 
Lot 7, Block, 2, Brainerd Oaks 4,796.51 
Lot 8, Block, 2, Brainerd Oaks 5,011.28 
Lot 9, Block 2, Brainerd Oaks 5,011.28 
Lot 10, Block 2, Brainerd Oaks 3,865.84 
Lot 11, Block 2, Brainerd Oaks 4,581.74 
Lot 12, Block 2, Brainerd Oaks 5,154.46 
Lot 13, Block 2, Brainerd Oaks 5,584.00 
Lot 14, Block 2, Brainerd Oaks 5,512.41 
Lot 15, Block 2, Brainerd Oaks 5,154.46 
Lot 16, Block 2, Brainerd Oaks 5,584.00 
Lot 17, Block 2, Brainerd Oaks 4,080.61 
Lot 18, Block 2, Brainerd Oaks 4,868.10 
Lot 1, Block 4, Brainerd Oaks 5,011.28 
Lot 2, Block 4, Brainerd Oaks 5,154.46 
Lot 3, Block 4, Brainerd Oaks 4,080.61 
Lot 4, Block 4, Brainerd Oaks 5,011.28 
Lot 5, Block 4, Brainerd Oaks 4,724.92 
Lot 6, Block 4, Brainerd Oaks 3,865.84 
Lot 7, Block 4, Brainerd Oaks 4,366.97 
Lot 8, Block 4, Brainerd Oaks 4,868.10 
Lot 9, Block 4, Brainerd Oaks 4,868.10 
Lot 10, Block 4, Brainerd Oaks 5,512.41 
Lot 11, Block 4, Brainerd Oaks 5,154.46 
Lot 13, Block 4, Brainerd Oaks 5,297.64 
Lot 14, Block 4, Brainerd Oaks 5,512.41 
Lot 1, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,868.10 
Lot 2, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,868.10 
Lot 3, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 5,297.64 
Lot 4, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 5,584.00 
Lot 5, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,868.10 
Lot 6, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 5,870.36 
Lot 7, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,724.92 
Lot 8, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,581.74 
Lot 9, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,581.74 
Lot 10, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,080.61 
Lot 11, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,581.74 
Lot 12, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,581.74 
Lot 13, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,868.10 
Lot 14, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 5,154.46 
Lot 15, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 5,512.41 
Lot 16, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,080.61 
Lot 17, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,868.10 
Lot 18, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 5,297.64 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 30 of 120



CR195-32-934787.v1 
4902-7665-4639.1  

5 

Lot 19, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,581.74 
Lot 20, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 3,579.49 
Lot 21, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 5,154.46 
Lot 22, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,868.10 
Lot 23, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,724.92 
Lot 24, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,868.10 
Lot 25, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,581.74 
Lot 26, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,366.97 
Lot 27, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 5,011.28 
Lot 28, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,724.92 
Lot 29, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 5,154.46 
Lot 30, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 4,868.10 
Lot 31, Block 5, Brainerd Oaks 5,655.59 
Lot 2, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 4,868.10 
Lot 3, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 4,868.10 
Lot 4, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 5,297.64 
Lot 5, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 5,297.64 
Lot 6, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 4,366.97 
Lot 7, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 3,865.84 
Lot 8, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 5,011.28 
Lot 9, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 5,297.64 
Lot 10, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 5,655.59 
Lot 11, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 5,297.64 
Lot 12, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 5,154.46 
Lot 13, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 5,297.64 
Lot 14, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 4,581.74 
Lot 15, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 5,369.23 
Lot 16, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 4,581.74 
Lot 17, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 4,366.97 
Lot 18, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 4,724.92 
Lot 19, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 4,581.74 
Lot 20, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 4,581.74 
Lot 21, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 4,724.92 
Lot 22, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 4,868.10 
Lot 23, Block 6, Brainerd Oaks 5,512.41 
Outlot E, Brainerd Oaks 
Outlot F, Brainerd Oaks 

18,300.00 
55,500.00 

Lot 1, Block 1, Dalmar Estates 16,405.65 
Lot 2, Block 1, Dalmar Estates 15,333.93 
Lot 3, Block 1, Dalmar Estates 17,807.14 
Lot 4, Block 1, Dalmar Estates 20,775.00 
Lot 5, Block 1, Dalmar Estates 21,352.08 
Lot 6, Block 1, Dalmar Estates 23,083.33 
Lot 7, Block 1, Dalmar Estates 30,667.86 

Lot 1, Block 1, Serene Pines 15,448.24 
Lot 2, Block 1, Serene Pines 16,231.84 
Lot 3, Block 1, Serene Pines 15,784.07 
Lot 4, Block 1, Serene Pines 15,784.07 
Lot 5, Block 1, Serene Pines 17,351.28 
Lot 6, Block 1, Serene Pines 16,903.51 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 31 of 120



CR195-32-934787.v1 
4902-7665-4639.1  

6 

Lot 7, Block 1, Serene Pines 14,328.80 
Lot 1, Block 2, Serene Pines 17,127.39 
Lot 2, Block 2, Serene Pines 17,015.45 
Lot 3, Block 2, Serene Pines 16,231.84 
Lot 4, Block 2, Serene Pines 14,888.52 
Lot 5, Block 2, Serene Pines 14,888.52 
Lot 6, Block 2, Serene Pines 14,888.52 
Lot 1, Block 3, Serene Pines 14,888.52 
Lot 2, Block 3, Serene Pines 15,000.46 
Lot 3, Block 3, Serene Pines 15,336.29 
Lot 4, Block 3, Serene Pines 15,112.41 
Lot 7, Block 3, Serene Pines 14,888.52 
Lot 8, Block 3, Serene Pines 15,000.48 
Lot 9, Block 3, Serene Pines 16,679.62 
Lot 1, Block 4, Serene Pines 16,007.96 
Lot 2, Block 4, Serene Pines 14,664.63 
Lot 3, Block 4, Serene Pines 17,799.06 
Lot 5, Block 3, Serene Pines 20,500.00 

$ 932,800 1,006,600.00 

All in the County of Crow Wing, Minnesota. 

7. Miscellaneous.  Except as amended by this Fourth Amendment, the Contract shall remain in
full force and effect. 

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank.) 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 32 of 120



CR195-32-934787.v1 
4902-7665-4639.1  

S-1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Fourth Amendment to Master Purchase 
and Redevelopment Contract as of the date written above. 

AUTHORITY 

HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CROW WING 

By: 
Its Chair 

By: ________________________________ 
Its Executive Director 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
} ss. 

COUNTY OF CROW WING 

 The foregoing was acknowledged before me this 8th day of April, 2025, by Katherine Heppner the Chair 
of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority in and for the County of Crow Wing, a public body corporate 
and politic under the laws of Minnesota, on behalf of the public body corporate and politic. 

____________________________ 
Notary Public 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
} ss. 

COUNTY OF CROW WING 

The foregoing was acknowledged before me this 8th day of April, 2025, by Eric Charpentier the 
Executive Director of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority in and for the County of Crow Wing, a 
public body corporate and politic under the laws of Minnesota, on behalf of the public body corporate and 
politic. 

____________________________ 
Notary Public 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 33 of 120



CR195-32-934787.v1 
4902-7665-4639.1  

S-2 

REDEVELOPER 
LEVEL CONTRACTING, LLC 

By: _______________________________ 
Montgomery L. Jensen 

      Its: Chief Manager 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
} ss. 

COUNTY OF ____________ 

 The foregoing was acknowledged before me this ______ day of _________ 2025, by Montgomery L. 
Jensen, the Chief Manager of Level Contracting, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company, on behalf of 
the company.  

_________________________________ 
Notary Public 

This document drafted by: 

Kutak Rock LLP (SEL) 
60 South Sixth Street, Suite 3400 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 34 of 120



4933-9308-8303.2  

PURCHASE AND REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

Outlots E and F, BRAINERD OAKS, Crow Wing County, Minnesota 

1. Parties.  This Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made as of
___________, 2025, between HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY IN
AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CROW WING, a public body corporate and politic
under the laws of Minnesota having its office located at 324 East River Road, Brainerd
MN 56401 (the “Seller”), and LEVEL CONTRACTING, LLC, a Minnesota
limited liability company, having its principal office at 3062 Ni Gig Trl NW, Cass
Lake MN 56633 (the “Buyer”).

2. Offer/Acceptance.  Buyer offers to purchase and Seller agrees to sell real property in Crow

Wing County, Minnesota, legally described as follows (the “Property”):

Outlots E and F, BRAINERD OAKS, Crow Wing County, Minnesota

Check here if part or all of the land is Registered (Torrens) 

3. Acceptance Deadline and Date of Closing.  This offer to purchase, unless accepted
sooner, shall be null and void at 4:30 p.m. on  , 2025 (1 day from date of this 
Agreement).  The “Date of Closing” or “Closing” shall be no later than __________, 2025.

4. A. Price and Terms.  The price for the Property is $73,800.00 (“Purchase Price”),
allocated to each lot of the Property (“Outlot E” and “Outlot F,” each a “Lot”) as shown on
Exhibit A.  The Purchase Price shall be financed by the Seller and payable by the Buyer in
the form of the Forgivable Loan (as hereinafter defined).  The Buyer shall not be required
to issue payment to the Seller for the Purchase Price of the Property prior to transfer of the
Property but shall instead execute the Promissory Note described below.  The Seller and
Buyer agree that the Purchase Price is the fair market or rental value of the Property as
determined pursuant to Minnesota Statues, Section 469.032, as amended, for the proposed
uses in accordance with the Redevelopment Plan for Redevelopment Project No. 1, which
provides for certain redevelopment activities to take place in the City of Brainerd,
Minnesota (the “City”).

B. Forgivable Loan for Purchase Price; Promissory Note.  (i) For and in consideration
of the obligations being assumed by Buyer hereunder, Seller agrees to make a forgivable
loan to Buyer in the amount of Seventy-Three Thousand Dollars ($73,800.00) (the
“Forgivable Loan”) at Closing to be used for the sole purpose of paying the Purchase Price,
subject to the following terms and conditions:

(a) Seller and Buyer shall have executed this Agreement;

Attachment 4b

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 35 of 120



2 
CR195-36-979941.v1 
4933-9308-8303.2  

(b) Buyer shall have executed a promissory note in an amount equal to the
amount of the Forgivable Loan (the “Promissory Note”), in the form
attached as Exhibit D.

(c) No event of default under this Agreement shall have occurred and be
continuing beyond any applicable cure periods.

(ii) The Forgivable Loan shall be forgiven over a period not exceeding two (2) years from
the Date of Closing or such other longer period approved in writing by Seller, consistent
with this Agreement, with one-tenth (1/10) of the Forgivable Loan amount forgiven upon
receipt by Buyer and provided to Seller of a final certificate of occupancy for each of the
Housing Minimum Improvements (total of nine (9) to be received) and the final certificate
of construction completion or similar document for the Infrastructure Minimum
Improvements, subject to and conditioned upon satisfaction of the following conditions:

(a) Buyer shall have timely paid all property taxes, and all fees and other
charges that are due and owing on any portion of the Property that Buyer
owns as of the date such property taxes, fees and other charges became
delinquent; and

(b) No event of default related to the Minimum Improvements under this
Agreement shall have occurred, subject to applicable cure periods.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that subsequent to conveyance of the Property or 
any part thereof to the Buyer and prior to receipt by the Buyer of Certificates of Completion 
for the Minimum Improvements, Seller re-enters and takes possession of the Property and 
terminates (and revests in the Seller) the estate conveyed by the Deed to the Buyer, as set forth 
in Section 16 hereof, any portion of the Forgivable Loan not yet forgiven shall be forgiven 
and the Promissory Note shall be cancelled upon reimbursement by Buyer  of all costs and 
expenses incurred by the Seller, including but not limited to proportionate salaries of 
personnel, in connection with the recapture, management, and resale of the Property or part 
thereof (but less any income derived by the Seller from the Property or part thereof in 
connection with such management); all taxes, assessments, and water and sewer charges 
with respect to the Property or part thereof (or, in the event the Property is exempt from 
taxation or assessment or such charge during the period of ownership thereof by the Seller, 
an amount, if paid, equal to such taxes, assessments, or charges (as determined by the Seller 
assessing official) as would have been payable if the Property were not so exempt); any 
payments made or necessary to be made to discharge any encumbrances or liens existing 
on the Property or part thereof at the time of revesting of title thereto in the Seller or to 
discharge or prevent from attaching or being made any subsequent encumbrances or liens 
due to obligations, defaults or acts of the Buyer, its successors or transferees; any 
expenditures made or obligations incurred with respect to the making or completion of the 
Minimum Improvements or any part thereof on the Property or part thereof; and any 
amounts otherwise owing the Seller by the Buyer and its successor or transferee 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 36 of 120



3 
CR195-36-979941.v1 
4933-9308-8303.2  

In the event that subsequent to conveyance of the Property or any part thereof to the Buyer 
and after receipt by the Buyer of Certificates of Completion for the Minimum Improvements, 
Buyer and its successors and assigns breach the covenants set forth in Sections 15F of this 
Agreement, if the Forgivable Loan has not yet been forgiven and the Promissory Note has 
not yet been cancelled, in addition to all other remedies available to Seller in this 
Agreement, Seller may immediately demand repayment of the Forgivable Loan and the 
entire outstanding balance of the Promissory Note will become immediately due and 
payable thirty (30) days after Seller gives written notice to Buyer of such demand for 
repayment. In the event Seller accelerates the debt secured by the Promissory Note 
subsequent to receipt of the Buyer of Certificates of Completion for the Minimum 
Improvements, and Buyer fully and timely satisfies repayment of such debt, Buyer shall 
retain fee simple title to the Property without further obligation under the Promissory Note, 
Forgivable Loan or this Agreement. All unpaid sums will accrue interest at the rate of [4%] 
per annum accruing from the date payment is due. 

(iii) The Promissory Note shall be terminated and cancelled upon forgiveness of the
Forgivable Loan. Should the Buyer fail to qualify for forgiveness of the Forgivable Loan
in whole, the entire outstanding balance of the Promissory Note will become immediately
due and payable thirty (30) days after Seller gives written notice to Byer of such failure to
qualify for loan forgiveness. All unpaid sums will accrue interest at the rate of [4%] per
annum accruing from the date payment is due. Following Buyer’s full satisfaction of the
Promissory Note, Seller shall provide, within thirty (30) days upon receipt of the written
request of Buyer, an instrument executed by Seller evidencing termination and cancellation
of the Forgivable Loan and Promissory Note. In the event Seller accelerates the debt
secured by the Promissory Note as provided above, and Buyer fully and timely satisfies
repayment of such debt,  Buyer shall retain fee simple title to the Property without further
obligation under the Promissory Note, Forgivable Loan or this Agreement.

5. Personal Property Included in Sale.  There are no items of personal property or fixtures
owned by Seller and currently located on the Property for purposes of this sale.

6. Deed.  Upon performance by Buyer, Seller shall deliver a quit claim deed conveying title
to the Property to Buyer, in substantially the form attached as Exhibit B, subject to the
conditions subsequent required by Sections 15, 16, and 17 of this Agreement (the “Deed”),
and further subject to the terms and conditions of the Master Purchase and Redevelopment
Contract between the Seller and Paxmar-Brainerd, LLC, dated as of September 13, 2016,
recorded in the office of the Crow Wing County Recorder on March 17, 2017 as Document
No.A-886215, as amended by a First Amendment thereto, dated November 8, 2016,
recorded in the office of the Crow Wing County Recorder on March 17, 2017 as Document
No. A-886216, as further amended by a Second Amendment thereto, dated as of March 14,
2017, recorded in the office of the Crow Wing County Recorder on March 17, 2017 as
Document No. A-886217, as further amended by a Third Amendment thereto, dated as of
April 12, 2022, recorded in the office of the Crow Wing Recorder on June 20, 2023 as
Document No. 985256, and as assigned to and assumed by the Buyer pursuant to an
Assignment and Assumption of Master Purchase and Redevelopment Contract, dated as of
October 8, 2019, recorded in the office of the Crow Wing County Recorder on October 17,

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 37 of 120



4 
CR195-36-979941.v1 
4933-9308-8303.2  

2019 as Document No. A-924227 (as to amended, assigned, and assumed, the “Master 
Contract”). 

 
7. Real Estate Taxes and Special Assessments. 
 

A. Seller shall pay, at or before closing, any and all real estate taxes due and payable in 
2024 and prior years.  Real estate taxes for taxes payable year 2025 are exempt. 

 
B. Seller represents that there are no special assessments payable or pending as of the 

date of this Agreement.  If a special assessment becomes pending after the date of 
this Agreement and before the Date of Closing, Buyer may, as Buyer’s option: 

 
(1) Assume payment of the pending special assessment without 

adjustment to the purchase agreement price of the property; or 
 

(2) Require Seller to pay the pending special assessment and Buyer 
shall pay a commensurate increase in the purchase price of the Property, which 
increase shall be the same as the estimated amount of the assessment; or 
 

(3) Declare this Agreement null and void by notice to Seller, and earnest 
money shall be refunded to Buyer. 

 
8. Closing Costs and Related Items. The Buyer will pay: (a) one-half the closing fees charged 

by the title insurance or other closing agent, if any, utilized to close the transaction 
contemplated by this Agreement; (b) fees for title evidence obtained by Buyer; (c) the 
recording fees for this Agreement and for the Deed transferring title to Buyer; and (d) any 
transfer taxes. Seller will pay all other fees normally paid by sellers, including (a) Well 
Disclosure fees required to enable Buyer to record its deed from Seller under this Agreement, 
(b) one-half the closing fees charged by the title insurance or other closing agent, if 
any, utilized to close the transaction contemplated by this Agreement, and (c) fees and 
charges related to the filing of any instrument required to make title marketable. Each party 
shall pay its own attorney fees.  The Purchase Price shall be allocated and disbursed as 
provided in Sections 3.2 (b) and (c) of the Master Contract. 

 
9. Sewer and Water.  Seller represents that neither city sewer nor city water is available at 

the Property. 
 
10. Condition of Property.  Buyer acknowledges that it has inspected or has had the 

opportunity to inspect the Property and agrees to accept the Property “AS IS.” Buyer has 
the right, at its own expense to take soil samples for the purpose of determining if the soil 
is suitable for construction of the dwelling described in section 14 below. If the soil is 
determined to be unacceptable the Buyer may rescind this agreement by written notice to 
the Seller, in which case the agreement shall be null and void. Seller makes no warranties 
as to the condition of the Property. 

 
11. Marketability of Title.  As soon as reasonably possible after execution of this Agreement 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 38 of 120



5 
CR195-36-979941.v1 
4933-9308-8303.2  

by both parties: 

A. Seller shall surrender any abstract of title and a copy of any owner’s title insurance
policy for the property, if in Seller’s possession or control, to Buyer or to Legacy
Title, Buyer’s designated title service provider; and

B. Buyer shall obtain the title evidence determined necessary or desirable by Buyer.

The Buyer shall have 20 days from the date it receives such title evidence to raise any 
objections to title it may have.  Objections not made within such time will be deemed 
waived.  The Seller shall have 30 days from the date of such objection to affect a cure; 
provided, however, that Seller shall have no obligation to cure any objections, and may 
inform Buyer of such. The Buyer may then elect to close notwithstanding the uncured 
objections or declare this Agreement null and void, and the parties will thereby be released 
from any further obligation hereunder.   

12. Title Clearance and Remedies.  If Seller shall fail to have title objections timely removed,
the Buyer may, at its sole election: (a) terminate this Agreement without any liability on
its part; or (b) take title to the Property subject to such objections.

If title is marketable, or is made marketable as provided herein, and Buyer defaults in any
of the agreements herein, Seller may elect either of the following options, as permitted by
law:

A. Cancel this contract as provided by statute and retain all payments made hereunder
as liquidated damages.  The parties acknowledge their intention that any note given
pursuant to this contract is a down payment note, and may be presented for payment
notwithstanding cancellation;

B. Seek specific performance within six months after such right of action arises,
including costs and reasonable attorney's fees, as permitted by law.

If title is marketable, or is made marketable as provided herein, and Seller defaults in any 
of the agreements herein, Buyer may, as permitted by law: 

C. Seek damages from Seller including costs and reasonable attorney's fees;

D. Seek specific performance within six months after such right of action arises.

13. Well Disclosure.  Seller’s knowledge of wells is as follows:
 The Seller certifies that the Seller does not know of any wells on the described

real property.
 A well disclosure certificate accompanies this document.
 I am familiar with the property described in this instrument and I certify that the

status and number of wells on the Property have not changed since the last
previously filed well disclosure certificate.

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 39 of 120



6 
CR195-36-979941.v1 
4933-9308-8303.2  

14. Individual Sewage Treatment System Disclosure and Methamphetamine Disclosure.
Seller certifies that there is no individual sewage treatment system on or serving the
Property. To the best of Seller’s knowledge, methamphetamine production has not
occurred on the Property.

15. Construction Minimum Improvements and Transfer Thereof.  Buyer agrees that it will
construct on Outlot E a roadway and infrastructure necessary to access Outlot F.  Buyer
further agrees that it will construct on Outlot F 18 units of single-family housing, comprised
of nine (9) twin homes, intended for sale to a person or persons for residential occupancy
(an “Owner Occupant”) or rental to a person or persons for residential occupancy (a
“Renter Occupant”).  This covenant shall survive the delivery of the Deed.

A. Each single-family dwelling described in this Section is referred to as “Housing
Minimum Improvements.”  The roadway and infrastructure improvements
described in this Section is referred to as the “Infrastructure Minimum
Improvements.”  Collectively, the Housing Minimum Improvements and the
Infrastructure Minimum Improvements are referred to as the “Minimum
Improvements.”

B. (i) The Housing Minimum Improvements shall consist of a new single-family
dwelling and shall be constructed substantially in accordance with the Declaration
of Covenants, Easements and Restrictions of record and applicable to Outlot F
provided that approval of the building plans for such Housing Minimum
Improvements shall be evidenced by the issuance by the City of a building permit
for each of the nine (9) Housing Minimum Improvements.

(ii) The Infrastructure Minimum Improvements shall consist of roadway and
infrastructure necessary to access Outlot F and shall be constructed substantially in
accordance with the Declaration of Covenants, Easements and Restrictions of
record and applicable to Outlot E provided that approval of the building plans for
the Infrastructure Minimum Improvements shall be evidenced by the issuance by
the City of a building permit for the Infrastructure Minimum Improvements.

C. Construction of the Minimum Improvements on each Lot must commence within
six (6) months of the Date of Closing and must be substantially completed within
two (2) years of the Date of Closing.  Construction of each of the nine (9) Housing
Minimum Improvements on Outlot F will be considered substantially complete
when the final certificate of occupancy has been issued by the City building official
for such Housing Minimum Improvements.  Construction of the Infrastructure
Minimum Improvements on Outlot E will be considered substantially complete
when the final certificate of construction completion or similar document has been
issued by the City building and/or engineering official(s) for the Infrastructure
Minimum Improvements.

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 40 of 120



7 
CR195-36-979941.v1 
4933-9308-8303.2  

D. Promptly after substantial completion of all of the Minimum Improvements on each 
Lot in accordance with those provisions of this Agreement relating solely to the 
obligations of the Buyer to construct such Minimum Improvements (including the 
date for completion thereof), the Seller will furnish the Buyer with a Certificate of 
Completion, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C, for the Minimum 
Improvements on such Lot.  Such certification by the Seller shall be (and it shall be 
so provided in the Deed and in the certification itself) a conclusive determination 
of satisfaction and termination of the agreements and covenants in the Master 
Contract, in this Agreement and in the Deed with respect to the obligations of the 
Buyer and its successors and assigns, to construct the Minimum Improvements on 
the applicable Lot and the dates for completion thereof. 

 
The certificates provided for in this Section of this Agreement shall be in such form as will 
enable them to be recorded in the proper office for the recordation of deeds and other 
instruments pertaining to the Property.  If the Seller shall refuse or fail to provide any 
certification in accordance with the provisions of this Section, the Seller shall, within thirty 
(30) days after written request by the Buyer, provide the Buyer with a written statement, 
indicating in adequate detail in what respects the Buyer has failed to complete the 
Minimum Improvements in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement, or is 
otherwise in default, and what measures or acts it will be necessary, in the opinion of the 
Seller for the Buyer to take or perform in order to obtain such certification. 

 
E. The Buyer represents and agrees that until issuance of the Certificate of Completion 

for the Minimum Improvements on each Lot:  
 

 (1) Except for any agreement for sale to an Owner Occupant or lease to a 
Renter Occupant, the Buyer has not made or created and will not make or create or 
suffer to be made or created any total or partial sale, assignment, conveyance, or lease, 
or any trust or power, or transfer in any other mode or form of or with respect to this 
Agreement or the Property or any part thereof or any interest therein, or any contract 
or agreement to do any of the same, to any person or entity (collectively, a “Transfer”), 
without the prior written approval of the Seller’s board of commissioners. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Developer may transfer or assign a Lot to a third-party 
builder for the purpose of construction of the Minimum Improvements on that Lot 
without the prior written consent of the Authority; provided that if Developer effects 
a such a Transfer to a third-party builder, Developer shall remain bound by all 
obligations with respect to the Property under this Agreement and the Master 
Contract. 
  
 (2) If the Buyer seeks to effect a Transfer of any Lot with respect to this 
Agreement prior to issuance of the Certificate of Completion for that Lot, the Seller 
shall be entitled to require as conditions to such Transfer that: 
 

(i) any proposed transferee shall have the qualifications and 
financial responsibility, in the reasonable judgment of the Seller, necessary 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 41 of 120



8 
CR195-36-979941.v1 
4933-9308-8303.2  

and adequate to fulfill the obligations undertaken in this Agreement by the 
Buyer as to the portion of the Property to be transferred; and 

(ii) Any proposed transferee, by instrument in writing satisfactory
to the Seller and in form recordable in the public land records of Crow Wing 
County, Minnesota, shall, for itself and its successors and assigns, and 
expressly for the benefit of the Seller, have expressly assumed all of the 
obligations of the Buyer under this Agreement as to the portion of the Property 
to be transferred and agreed to be subject to all the conditions and restrictions 
to which the Buyer is subject as to such portion; provided, however, that the 
fact that any transferee of, or any other successor in interest whatsoever to, the 
Property, or any part thereof, shall not, for whatever reason, have assumed 
such obligations or so agreed, and shall not (unless and only to the extent 
otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement or agreed to in writing by 
the Seller) deprive the Seller of any rights or remedies or controls with respect 
to the Property, the Minimum Improvements or any part thereof or the 
construction of the Minimum Improvements; it being the intent of the parties 
as expressed in this Agreement that (to the fullest extent permitted at law and 
in equity and excepting only in the manner and to the extent specifically 
provided otherwise in this Agreement) no transfer of, or change with respect 
to, ownership in the Property or any part thereof, or any interest therein, 
however consummated or occurring, and whether voluntary or involuntary, 
shall operate, legally, or practically, to deprive or limit the Seller of or with 
respect to any rights or remedies on controls provided in or resulting from this 
Agreement with respect to the Property that the Seller would have had, had 
there been no such transfer or change.  In the absence of specific written 
agreement by the Seller to the contrary, no such transfer or approval by the 
Seller thereof shall be deemed to relieve the Buyer, or any other party bound 
in any way by this Agreement or otherwise with respect to the Property, from 
any of its obligations with respect thereto. 

(iii) Any and all instruments and other legal documents involved
in effecting the transfer of any interest in this Agreement or the Property 
governed by this subsection E. shall be in a form reasonably satisfactory to the 
Seller. 

(3) If the conditions described in paragraph (2) above are satisfied then
the Transfer will be approved and the Buyer shall be released from its obligation under 
this Agreement, as to the portion of the Property that is transferred, assigned, or 
otherwise conveyed.  The provisions of this paragraph (3) apply to all subsequent 
transferors. 

(4) Upon issuance of the Certificate of Completion for a Lot, the Buyer
may Transfer such Lot and/or the Buyer's rights and obligations under this Agreement 
with respect to such Lot without the prior written consent of the Seller. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 42 of 120



9 
CR195-36-979941.v1 
4933-9308-8303.2  

F. The Buyer, and its successors and assigns, agree that they (a) will use the Housing 
Minimum Improvements only as single family dwellings, and in the case of an 
Owner Occupant, will occupy the Property as a residence, and in the case of a 
Renter Occupant, will lease the Property to individuals or families who will occupy 
the Property as a residence, (b) will not seek exemption from real estate taxes on 
the Property under State law, and (c) will not transfer or permit transfer of the 
Property to any entity whose ownership or operation of the Property would result 
in the Property being exempt from real estate taxes under State law (other than any 
portion thereof dedicated or conveyed to the City or Seller in accordance with this 
Agreement).  The covenants in this paragraph run with the land, survive both 
delivery of the Deed and issuance of the Certificate of Completion for the 
Minimum Improvements on each Lot, and shall remain in effect for ten years 
after the Date of Closing.  

 
16. Revesting Title in Seller upon Happening of Event Subsequent to Conveyance to Buyer.  

In the event that subsequent to conveyance of the Property or any part thereof to the Buyer 
and prior to receipt by the Buyer of the Certificate of Completion for the Minimum 
Improvements on any Lot, the Buyer, subject to Unavoidable Delays (as hereafter defined), 
fails to carry out its obligations with respect to the construction of the Minimum 
Improvements (including the nature and the date for the completion thereof), or abandons or 
substantially suspends construction work, and any such failure, abandonment, or suspension 
shall not be cured, ended, or remedied within thirty (30) days after written demand from the 
Seller to the Buyer to do so, then the Seller shall have the right to re-enter and take possession 
of the Property and to terminate (and revest in the Seller) the estate conveyed by the Deed to 
the Buyer, it being the intent of this provision, together with other provisions of the 
Agreement, that the conveyance of the Property to the Buyer shall be made upon, and that the 
Deed shall contain a condition subsequent to the effect that in the event of any default on the 
part of the Buyer and failure on the part of the Buyer to remedy, end, or abrogate such default 
within the period and in the manner stated in such subdivisions, the Seller at its option may 
declare a termination in favor of the Seller of the title, and of all the rights and interests in and 
to the Property conveyed to the Buyer, and that such title and all rights and interests of the 
Buyer, and any assigns or successors in interest to and in the Property, shall revert to the 
Seller, but only if the events stated in this Section have not been cured within the time periods 
provided above. 

 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section, the Seller shall have no 
right to reenter or retake title to and possession of a portion of the Property for which a 
Certificate of Completion has been issued. 
 
For the purposes of this Agreement, the term “Unavoidable Delays” means delays beyond the 
reasonable control of the Buyer as a result thereof which are the direct result of strikes, other 
labor troubles, prolonged adverse weather or acts of God, fire or other casualty to the 
Minimum Improvements, litigation commenced by third parties which, by injunction or other 
similar judicial action, directly results in delays, or acts of any federal, state or local 
governmental unit (other than the Seller in exercising its rights under this Agreement) which 
directly results in delays. Unavoidable Delays shall not include delays in the Buyer’s 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 43 of 120



10 
CR195-36-979941.v1 
4933-9308-8303.2  

obtaining of permits or governmental approvals necessary to enable construction of the 
Minimum Improvements by the dates such construction is required under this section of this 
Agreement. 

17. [Reserved.]

18. Time is of the essence for all provisions of this Agreement.

19. Notices.  All notices required herein shall be in writing and delivered personally or mailed
to the address shown at paragraph 1 above and, if mailed, are effective as of the date of
mailing.

20. Minnesota Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota.

21. Specific Performance.  This Agreement may be specifically enforced by the parties, provided 
that an action is brought within one year of the date of alleged breach of this Agreement.

22. No Remedy Exclusive.  No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the Seller or Buyer
is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but each and every such
remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this
Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute.  No delay or omission
to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power
or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised
from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.

23. No Merger of Representations, Warranties.  All representations and warranties contained
in this Purchase Agreement shall not be merged into any instruments or conveyance delivered
at closing, and the parties shall be bound accordingly.

24. Recording.  This Agreement shall be filed of record with the Crow Wing County Registrar
of Titles or Office of Recorder, as the case may be.  Buyer shall pay all recording costs.

25. No Broker Involved.  The Seller and represent and warrant to each other that there is no
broker involved in this transaction with whom it has negotiated or to whom it has agreed to
pay a broker commission.  Buyer agrees to indemnify Seller for any and all claims for
brokerage commissions or finders' fees in connection with negotiations for purchase of the
Property arising out of any alleged agreement or commitment or negotiation by Buyer, and
Seller agrees to indemnify Buyer for any and all claims for brokerage commissions or finders'
fees in connection with negotiations for purchase of the Property arising out of any alleged
agreement or commitment or negotiation by Seller.

In witness of the foregoing, the parties have executed this agreement on the year and date
written above. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 44 of 120



11 
CR195-36-979941.v1 
4933-9308-8303.2  

SELLER: HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY IN AND FOR THE 
COUNTY OF CROW WING 

By: ___________________     
       Its Executive Director 

} ss. 

By:____________________ 
      Its Chair 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

COUNTY OF CROW WING 

 The foregoing was acknowledged before me this 8th day of April 2025, by Katherine Heppner 
and Eric Charpentier, the Chair and Executive Director, respectively, of the Housing and 
Redevelopment Authority in and for the County of Crow Wing, a public body corporate and politic 
under the laws of Minnesota, on behalf of the public body corporate and politic. 

__________________________________ 
Notary Public 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 45 of 120



12 
CR195-36-979941.v1 
4933-9308-8303.2  

BUYER: LEVEL CONTRACTING, LLC 

By: 
Its: Chief Manager_________________ 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
} ss. 

COUNTY OF _______________ 

 The foregoing was acknowledged before me this        day of April, 2025, by Montgomery 
Jensen, the Chief Manager of Level Contracting, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company, on 
behalf of the company.  

_____________________________ 
Notary Public 

This document drafted by: 

Kutak Rock LLP 
60 South Sixth Street, Suite 3400 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 46 of 120



4933-9308-8303.2 CR195-36-979941.v1 A-1

EXHIBIT A 

ALLOCATION OF PURCHASE PRICE BY LOT 

Legal Description PID Price 
Outlot E, BRAINERD OAKS 41290605 $18,300.00 
Outlot F, BRAINERD OAKS 41290604  55,500.00 

Total   $73,800.00 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 47 of 120



4933-9308-8303.2 CR195-36-979941.v1 B-1

EXHIBIT B 

FORM OF QUIT CLAIM DEED 

Deed Tax Due: $_______ 

ECRV: ___________________ 

THIS INDENTURE, between the Housing and Redevelopment Authority in and for the 
County of Crow Wing, a public body corporate and politic (the “Grantor”), and Level Contracting, 
LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company (the “Grantee”). 

WITNESSETH, that Grantor, in consideration of the sum of $73,800 and other good and 
valuable consideration the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant, bargain, 
quitclaim and convey to the Grantee, its successors and assigns forever, all the tract or parcel of 
land lying and being in the County of Crow Wing and State of Minnesota described as follows, 
to-wit (such tract or parcel of land is hereinafter referred to as the “Property”): 

Check here if part or all of the land is Registered (Torrens)  

To have and to hold the same, together with all the hereditaments and appurtenances 
thereunto belonging. 

SECTION 1. 

It is understood and agreed that this Deed is subject to the covenants, conditions, 
restrictions and provisions of: (A) an agreement recorded with the Crow Wing County Recorder 
on March 17, 2017 as Document No. A-886215, entered into between the Grantor and Paxmar-
Brainerd, LLC, dated as of September 13, 2016, identified as “Master Purchase and 
Redevelopment Contract,” as amended by a First Amendment thereto, dated November 8, 2016, 
and recorded in the office of the Crow Wing County Recorder on March 17, 2017 as Document 
No. A-886216, as further amended by a Second Amendment thereto, dated as of March 14, 2017, 
and recorded in the office of the Crow Wing County Recorder on March 17, 2017 as Document 
No. A-886217, as further amended by a Third Amendment thereto, dated as of April 12, 2022, and 
recorded in the office of the Crow Wing Recorder on June 20, 2023 as Document No. 985256, and 
as assigned by an Assignment and Assumption of Master Purchase and Redevelopment Contract, 
dated October 8, 2019, and recorded in the office of the Crow Wing County Recorder on October 
17, 2019 as Document No. A-924227 (hereafter collectively referred to as the “Master Contract”), 
and (B) an agreement entered into between the Grantor and Grantee on [__________, 2025, 
recorded herewith and identified as “Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement” (herein referred to 
as the “Agreement”) and that the Grantee shall not convey this Property, or any part thereof, except 
as permitted by the Agreement until a certificate of completion releasing the Grantee from certain 
obligations of said Agreement as to this Property or such part thereof then to be conveyed, has 
been placed of record.  

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 48 of 120



4933-9308-8303.2 CR195-36-979941.v1 B-2 

 
It is specifically agreed that the Grantee shall promptly begin and diligently prosecute to 

completion the redevelopment of the Property through the construction of the Minimum 
Improvements thereon, as provided in the Agreement. 
 
 Promptly after completion of the Minimum Improvements in accordance with the 
provisions of the Agreement, the Grantor will furnish the Grantee with an appropriate instrument 
so certifying.  Such certification by the Grantor shall be (and it shall be so provided in the 
certification itself) a conclusive determination of satisfaction and termination of the agreements 
and covenants of the Agreement and of this Deed with respect to the obligation of the Grantee, 
and its successors and assigns, to construct the Minimum Improvements and the dates for the 
beginning and completion thereof.  Such certification and such determination shall not constitute 
evidence of compliance with or satisfaction of any obligation of the Grantee to any holder of a 
mortgage, or any insurer of a mortgage, securing money loaned to finance the purchase of the 
Property hereby conveyed or the Minimum Improvements, or any part thereof. 
 
 All certifications provided for herein shall be in such form as will enable them to be 
recorded with the County Recorder, or Registrar of Titles, Crow Wing County, Minnesota.  If the 
Grantor shall refuse or fail to provide any such certification in accordance with the provisions of 
the Agreement and this Deed, the Grantor shall, within thirty (30) days after written request by the 
Grantee, provide the Grantee with a written statement indicating in adequate detail in what respects 
the Grantee has failed to complete the Minimum Improvements in accordance with the provisions 
of the Agreement or is otherwise in default, and what measures or acts it will be necessary, in the 
opinion of the Grantor, for the Grantee to take or perform in order to obtain such certification. 
 
SECTION 2.  
 
 The Grantee’s rights and interest in the Property are subject to the terms and conditions of 
Sections 15, 16 and 17 of the Agreement relating to the Grantor’s right to re-enter and revest in 
Grantor title to the Property under conditions specified therein, including but not limited to 
termination of such right upon issuance of a Certificate of Completion as defined in the Agreement. 
 
SECTION 3. 
 
 The Grantee agrees for itself and its successors and assigns to or of the Property or 
any part thereof, hereinbefore described, that the Grantee and such successors and assigns 
shall comply with Section 15F of the Agreement for a period of ten years after the date hereof.  
 
 It is intended and agreed that the above and foregoing agreements and covenants 
shall be covenants running with the land for the respective terms herein provided, and that 
they shall, in any event, and without regard to technical classification or designation, legal 
or otherwise, and except only as otherwise specifically provided in this Deed, be binding, to 
the fullest extent permitted by law and equity for the benefit and in favor of, and enforceable 
by, the Grantor against the Grantee, its successors and assigns, and every successor in 
interest to the Property, or any part thereof or any interest therein, and any party in 
possession or occupancy of the Property or any part thereof. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 49 of 120



4933-9308-8303.2 CR195-36-979941.v1 B-3

In amplification, and not in restriction of, the provisions of the preceding section, it is 
intended and agreed that the Grantor shall be deemed a beneficiary of the agreements and 
covenants provided herein, both for and in its own right, and also for the purposes of protecting 
the interest of the community and the other parties, public or private, in whose favor or for whose 
benefit these agreements and covenants have been provided.  Such agreements and covenants shall 
run in favor of the Grantor without regard to whether the Grantor has at any time been, remains, 
or is an owner of any land or interest therein to, or in favor of, which such agreements and 
covenants relate.  The Grantor shall have the right, in the event of any breach of any such 
agreement or covenant to exercise all the rights and remedies, and to maintain any actions or suits 
at law or in equity or other proper proceedings to enforce the curing of such breach of agreement 
or covenant, to which it or any other beneficiaries of such agreement or covenant may be entitled; 
provided that Grantor shall not have any right to re-enter the Property or revest in the Grantor the 
estate conveyed by this Deed, or any part thereof, on grounds of Grantee’s failure to comply with 
its obligations under this Section 3. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has caused this Deed to be duly executed in its 
behalf by its Chair and Executive Director, this 8th day of April 2025. 

 The Seller certifies that the Seller does
not know of any wells on the
described real property.

 A well disclosure certificate
accompanies this document or has
been electronically filed.  (If
electronically filed, insert WDC
number: __________________).

 I am familiar with the property
described in this instrument and I
certify that the status and number of
wells on the described real property
have not changed since the last
previously filed well disclosure
certificate.

HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF 
CROW WING  

By   
Its Chair 

By     
Its Executive Director 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 50 of 120



4933-9308-8303.2 CR195-36-979941.v1 B-4

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF CROW WING ) 

On this 8th day of April, 2025, before me, a notary public within and for Crow Wing 
County, personally appeared Katherine Heppner and Eric Charpentier to me personally known 
who by me duly sworn, did say that they are the Chair and Executive Director of the Housing and 
Redevelopment Authority in and for the County of Crow Wing (the “Authority”) named in the 
foregoing instrument; that said instrument was signed on behalf of said Authority pursuant to a 
resolution of its governing body; and said Katherine Heppner and Eric Charpentier acknowledged 
said instrument to be the free act and deed of said Authority. 

Notary Public 

This instrument was drafted by: 

Kutak Rock LLP 
60 South Sixth Street, Suite 3400 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 
(612) 334-5000

Tax Statements should be sent to: 

Level Contracting, LLC 
3062 Ni Gig Trl NW 
Cass Lake, MN 56633 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 51 of 120



4933-9308-8303.2 CR195-36-979941.v1 C-1

EXHIBIT C 

FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 
[Housing Minimum Improvements] [Infrastructure Minimum Improvements] 

WHEREAS, the Housing and Redevelopment Authority in and for the County of Crow Wing, 
a public body corporate and politic (the “Grantor”), conveyed land in Crow Wing County, Minnesota 
to Level Contracting, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company (the “Grantee”), by a Deed 
recorded in the Office of the County Recorder in and for the County of Crow Wing and State of 
Minnesota, as Document Number _______________; 
and 

WHEREAS, said Deed contained certain covenants and restrictions set forth in Sections 1, 
2 and 3 of said Deed; and 

WHEREAS, said Grantee has performed said covenants and conditions insofar as it is able 
in a manner deemed sufficient by the Grantor to permit the execution and recording of this 
certification. 

NOW, THEREFORE, this is to certify that all building construction and other physical 
improvements specified to be done and made by the Grantee have been completed and the above 
covenants and conditions in said Deed and the agreements and covenants in Sections 15A and 15B 
of the Agreement (as described in said Deed) have been performed by the Grantee therein, and the 
County Recorder [and the Registrar of Titles] in and for the County of Crow Wing and State of 
Minnesota are hereby authorized to accept for recording and to record, the filing of this instrument, 
to be a conclusive determination of the satisfactory termination of the covenants and conditions of 
Sections 15A and 15B of the Agreement and the covenants and restrictions set forth in Sections 1 and 
2 of said Deed; provided that the covenants set forth in Sections 15F of the Agreement, and in Section 
3 of the Deed, remain in full force and effect through the period stated thereon.   

Dated:  ______________, 20___. 

HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF 
CROW WING  

By  
Its Chair 

By  
Its Executive Director 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 52 of 120



4933-9308-8303.2 CR195-36-979941.v1 C-2

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF CROW WING ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ________, 
2025, by ____________________ and ____________________, the Chair and Executive 
Director, respectively, of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority in and for the County of 
Crow Wing, on behalf of the authority. 

__________________________________________ 
Notary Public 

This document drafted by: 
KUTAK ROCK LLP 
60 South Sixth Street, Suite 3400 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 
(612) 334-5000

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 53 of 120



4933-9308-8303.2 CR195-36-979941.v1 C-1

EXHIBIT D 

FORM OF PROMISSORY NOTE 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, LEVEL CONTRACTING, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability 
company (the “Borrower”), agrees and promises to pay to the order of the HOUSING AND 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CROW WING, a public 
body corporate and politic under the laws of Minnesota (the “Lender”), the sum of Seventy-Three 
Thousand Dollars ($73,800.00), which is the total amount of the Forgivable Loan as defined in 
that certain Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement between the Lender and the Borrower dated 
_April 8th, 2025 (the “Agreement”). The following are the terms of this Promissory Note (the 
“Note”). 

1. The entire principal balance hereof or the portion due and owing shall be payable
to the Lender according to the terms of the Agreement, unless this Note is forgiven or cancelled 
pursuant to the terms of the Agreement. If Lender does not forgive or cancel this Note, or if 
Borrower has not repaid the amount of the principal or the portion due and owing, as defined by 
the Agreement, or if Borrower defaults under any term or condition of the Agreement, then 
Borrower will be in Default and subject to the consequences for Default in Paragraph 3 of this 
Note and the Agreement. 

2. The Borrower may at any time prepay without penalty all or any part of the unpaid
principal balance of this Note. 

3. Any default under the Agreement shall be a Default hereunder and payment may
be accelerated. Upon Default, the Lender may, at its option, exercise any and all rights and 
remedies available to it under this Promissory Note, or any applicable law, including, without 
limitation, the right to collect from the Borrower all sums due under this Note with interest 
accruing at an annual rate of [4%] beginning 30 days following Lender’s demand for payment 
until paid in full. The Borrower hereby waives presentment, demand for payment, notice of 
nonpayment, notice of dishonor, protest, and all other notices or demands in connection with the 
delivery, acceptance, performance, or Default of this Note. 

4. If this Note is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection after default in the
payment of principal or interest, or if all or any part of the indebtedness represented hereby is 
proved, established, or collected in any court or in any bankruptcy, receivership, debtor relief, 
probate, or other court proceeding, the Borrower shall pay all reasonable costs and expenses 
incurred by or on behalf of Lender in connection with the Lender’s exercise of any or all of its 
rights and remedies under this Note, including, without limitation, court costs, and attorneys’ fees. 

5. No delay or failure of the Lender to exercise any power or right shall operate as a
waiver thereof, and such rights and powers shall be deemed continuous; nor shall a partial exercise 
preclude full exercise of such rights and powers. No right or remedy of the Lender shall be deemed 
abridged or modified by any course of conduct, and no waiver thereof shall be predicated thereon. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 54 of 120



4933-9308-8303.2 CR195-36-979941.v1 C-2

6. The obligations of the Borrower under the terms of this Note shall be binding on
the successors-in-interest, legal representatives, and assigns of the Borrower, and shall inure to the 
benefit of the Lender and the Lender’s successors-in-interest, legal representatives, and assigns. 

7. This Note is also subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

IMPORTANT: READ BEFORE SIGNING: The terms of this Note and the Agreement 
should be read carefully because only those terms in writing are enforceable. No other terms 
or oral promises not contained may be legally enforced. You may change the terms of this 
Note only by another written agreement. 

Dated as of ______, 2025. 

LEVEL CONTRACTING, LLC 

____________________________

By: Montgomery Jensen 

Its: Chief Manager 

This document drafted by: 
KUTAK ROCK LLP 
60 South Sixth Street, Suite 3400 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 
(612) 334-5000

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 55 of 120



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 56 of 120



4898-8253-4186.1  1 

GRANT AGREEMENT 

This Grant Agreement (“Agreement”) is made this __ day of __________, 2025, between the 
HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CROW WING, a 
county housing authority, a public body, corporate and politic, and a political subdivision of the State of 
Minnesota (“County HRA”), the HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY IN AND FOR THE 
CITY OF BRAINERD, MINNESOTA (“Brainerd HRA”), a housing and redevelopment authority, public 
body, corporate and politic, and a political subdivision of the State of Minnesota (hereinafter, the County 
HRA and Brainerd HRA may be referred to individually as a “Grantor” or collectively as “Grantors”), and 
LEVEL CONTRACTING, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company ( “Grantee”). 

RECITALS 

A. On or before the date hereof, pursuant to the authority granted under Minnesota Statutes,
Sections 465.035 and 471.64, as amended, Brainerd HRA conveyed Outlot E and Outlot F to County HRA to 
facilitate redevelopment of such property in accordance with a redevelopment plan for Redevelopment 
Project No. 1, which was established by County HRA pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.001 
to 469.047 (“HRA Act”), the area of which includes all property in Crow Wing County (the “County”), 
and a Master Purchase and Redevelopment Contract, dated as of September 13, 2016 (the “Master 
Contract”), between the County HRA and Paxmar-Brainerd, LLC, as amended and assigned to and assumed 
by Grantee. 

B. On or before the date hereof, County HRA entered into a separate purchase and
redevelopment agreement with Grantee, in accordance with and conforming to the Master Contract, pursuant 
to which County HRA will convey Outlot E and Outlot F, located in the City of Brainerd, Minnesota (the 
“City”), to Grantee and Grantee will construct owner-occupied and/or rental twin homes thereon (the 
“Project”). 

C. Pursuant to Section 469.041(6) of the HRA Act, Grantors may do any and all things
necessary or convenient to aid and cooperate in the planning, undertaking, construction, or operation of 
projects, including a redevelopment project, which term is defined to include but is not limited to, any work 
or undertaking to acquire real property for purposes of preventing, blighting factors, or the causes of blight, 
to clear any areas acquired and install, construct or reconstruct streets, utilities, and site improvements 
essential to the preparation of sites for uses in accordance with the redevelopment plan, and to sell or lease 
land so acquired for uses in accordance with the redevelopment plan. 

D. In connection with the Project, County HRA and Brainerd HRA have committed up to
$150,000 and $100,000, respectively, of available funds (the “Grants”) to reimburse Grantee for the costs of 
constructing certain roadway and other infrastructure improvements (the “Infrastructure Project”). 

E. Grantors and Grantee wish to memorialize the terms of the Grants in this Agreement.

ACCORDINGLY, the parties agree as follows: 

1. The Grant Amounts and Completion. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, upon
completion of the Infrastructure Project, County HRA agrees to grant to Grantee the sum not to exceed One 
Hundred Fifty Thousand and no/100ths Dollars ($150,000.00), and Brainerd HRA agrees to grant to Grantee 
the sum not to exceed One Hundred Thousand and no/100ths Dollars ($ 100,000.00), as reimbursement for 
the costs of the Infrastructure Project paid by Grantee (collectively, the “Grant Proceeds”).  Grant Proceeds 
shall be used only for reimbursement of hard costs of construction of the Infrastructure Project and shall 
not be used for reimbursement of administration expenses. 

Attachment 4c

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 57 of 120



4898-8253-4186.1  2 

Grantee shall complete the Infrastructure Project within two (2) years of execution of this Agreement 
and within the terms stated herein (the “End Date”).  Any material change in the scope of the Infrastructure 
Project, including the time schedule, plans and budget submitted by Grantee to Grantors (the “Infrastructure 
Project Plans and Budget”, must be approved in writing by Grantors.  Upon approval by an authorized 
representative of each of the Grantors, the duration of this Agreement may be extended for up to twelve (12) 
months.  Grant Proceeds shall be used only for reimbursement of expenses incurred in performing such 
purposes and activities with respect to the Infrastructure Project and this Agreement. 

Upon the earlier of (a) the End Date or (b) the termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 
7(g) hereof (the “Grant Termination Date”), any undisbursed Grant Proceeds shall be cancelled by 
operation of this Agreement and without any additional action by either Grantor. 

2. Accounting, Record Keeping, Availability/Access

For all expenditures made by Grantee for the Infrastructure Project to be reimbursed with Grant 
Proceeds pursuant to this Agreement, Grantee shall keep financial records including properly executed 
contracts, invoices, and other documents sufficient to evidence in proper detail the nature and propriety of 
such expenditures.  Accounting methods shall be in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Subject to the requirements of Minnesota Statutes section 16C.05, subd. 5, County, the State Auditor, 
or any of their duly authorized representatives, at any time during normal business hours, and as often as they 
may reasonably deem necessary, shall have access to and the right to examine, audit, excerpt, and transcribe 
any books, documents, papers, records, etc., which are pertinent to the accounting practices and procedures of 
Grantee and involve transactions relating to this Agreement.  Grantee shall maintain these materials and allow 
access during the period of this Agreement and for six (6) years after its expiration, termination, or 
cancellation. 

3. Reimbursements.  Grantors will disburse Grant Proceeds on a pro rata basis to Grantee
pursuant to this Agreement upon receipt of a reimbursement request submitted by Grantee in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit A (“Reimbursement Request”).  Reimbursement Requests may be submitted once 
per month and must be accompanied by supporting invoices that relate to activities in the approved 
Infrastructure Project Plans and Budget.  Subject to verification of adequacy of a Reimbursement Request 
and approval of consistency with this Agreement, Grantors will disburse the requested amount to Grantee 
within six (6) weeks after receipt of a Reimbursement Requests.  The final Reimbursement Request must be 
submitted within six (6) months of the expiration date of this Agreement. 

4. Representations and Warranties.  Grantee represents and warrants to each Grantor that:

(a) Grantee is duly organized in good standing under applicable laws of the State of
Minnesota and that it has legal authority to execute, deliver, and perform its obligations under this 
Agreement.  Grantee further represents and warrants that executing this Agreement will not 
violate any provisions of Grantee’s organizational documents, the laws of the State of Minnesota 
or the United States of America or cause a breach or default of any other agreement to which the 
Grantee is a party. 

(b) Grantee and its officers have paid all City and County personal property taxes and
property taxes due on all of its properties within the County for taxes owed on or before [October 
15, 2024][May 15, 2025]. If Grantors find that property taxes have not been paid by or on behalf of 
Grantee, Grantors may refuse to disburse Grant Proceeds or require the return of all or some of such 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 58 of 120



4898-8253-4186.1  3 

proceeds already disbursed. 

(c) Grantee shall use the Grant Proceeds solely for eligible uses in accordance with
Section 1 hereof. 

(d) Grantee has not made any materially false statements or misstatements of fact to
Grantors in connection with this Agreement. 

(e) Grantee agrees that it will keep and maintain books, records, and other documents
relating directly to the receipt and payment of Grant Proceeds and that any authorized representative 
of either of the Grantors, with reasonable advance notice, may have access to and the right to inspect, 
copy, audit, and examine all such books, records, and other documents of Grantee related to the 
Grants until six (6) months after the Grant Termination Date. 

5. No Business Subsidy.  The parties agree that the Grants are not a business subsidy as
defined in Minnesota Statutes, Sections 116J.993 to 116J.995, as amended (the “Business Subsidy Act”), 
because the assistance is assistance for housing.   

6. Indemnification.

(a) Grantee agrees to indemnify against and to hold each Grantor, and its respective
officers, agents, and employees, harmless of and from any and all liability, loss, or damage that it 
may incur under or by reason of this Agreement, and of and from any and all claims and demands 
whatsoever that may be asserted against either Grantor by reason of any alleged obligations or 
undertakings on their part to perform or discharge any of the terms, covenants, or agreements 
contained herein. 

(b) This indemnification and hold harmless provision will survive the execution,
delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the payment by Grantors of any portion of the 
Grants.  

(c) Nothing in this Agreement will constitute a waiver of or limitation on any immunity
from or limitation on liability to which Grantee is entitled under law. 

7. Miscellaneous.

(a) Waiver. The performance or observance of any promise or condition set forth in
this Agreement may be waived, amended, or modified only by a writing signed by Grantee and 
Grantor. No delay in the exercise of any power, right, or remedy operates as a waiver thereof, nor 
shall any single or partial exercise of any other power, right, or remedy. 

(b) Assignment. This Agreement is binding upon the parties.  All rights and powers
specifically conferred upon Grantor may be transferred or delegated by Grantor to any of its 
successors and assigns. Grantee's rights and obligations under this Agreement may be assigned only 
when such assignment is approved in writing by Grantor. 

(c) Governing Law. This Agreement is made and shall be governed in all respects by
the laws of the state of Minnesota. Any disputes, controversies, or claims arising out of this 
Agreement shall be heard in the state or federal courts of Minnesota, and all parties to this 
Agreement waive any objection to the jurisdiction of these courts, whether based on convenience or 
otherwise. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 59 of 120



4898-8253-4186.1  4 

(d) Severability. If any provision or application of this Agreement is held unlawful or
unenforceable in any respect, such illegality or unenforceability shall not affect other provisions or 
applications that can be given effect, and this Agreement shall be construed as if the unlawful or 
unenforceable provision or application had never been contained herein or prescribed hereby. 

(e) Notice. All notices required hereunder shall be given by depositing in the U.S. mail,
postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested, to the following addresses (or such other 
addresses as either party may notify the other): 

To Grantors: Crow Wing County HRA 
324 East River Road 
Brainerd, MN 56401 
Attn:  Executive Director 

Brainerd HRA 
324 East River Road 
Brainerd, MN 56401 
Attn:  Executive Director 

To Grantee: Level Contracting, LLC 
3062 Ni Gig Trl NW 
Cass Lake, MN 56633 
Attn: Monty Jensen 

(f) Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and may further
be executed electronically.  Grantor and Grantee are each bound by their own electronic or 
manual signature(s), and each acknowledges and accepts the electronic or manual signature of the 
other party. 

(g) Termination. This Agreement terminates upon disbursement of Grant Proceeds
pursuant to the final Reimbursement Request, as provided in Section 3 hereof, and none of the 
parties will have any further obligation to the other; provided that the obligation of Grantee to 
maintain books, documents, papers, records for transactions relating to this Agreement shall remain 
in effect and for six (6) years after termination of this Agreement, as provided in Section 2 hereof. 

(h) Entire Agreement. This Agreement[, together with the Infrastructure Project Plans
and Budget,] is the entire statement of agreement between Grantors and Grantee regarding the 
Grants. 

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 60 of 120



4898-8253-4186.1  S-1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the proper 
officers each Grantor and Grantee duly authorized on the day and year first written above. 

HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF 
CROW WING, MINNESOTA 

By: _________________________________ 
Its:  Chair 

By: _________________________________ 
Its: Executive Director 

[Signature page to Grant Agreement – Grantor (County HRA)] 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 61 of 120



4898-8253-4186.1  S-2 

             
HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY IN AND FOR THE CITY OF 
BRAINERD, MINNESOTA 

 
 

By: _________________________________ 
Its:  Chair  
        
 
By: _________________________________ 
Its:  Executive Director 

 
       
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
[Signature page to Grant Agreement – Grantor (Brainerd HRA)]

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 62 of 120



4898-8253-4186.1 S-3 

LEVEL CONTRACTING, LLC 

By: _________________________________ 
Its:  _________________________________ 

[Signature page to Grant Agreement – Grantee] 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 63 of 120



4898-8253-4186.1 Exhibit A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST 

To: Crow Wing County HRA 
324 East River Road 
Brainerd, MN 56401 
Attn:  Executive Director 

Brainerd HRA 
324 East River Road 
Brainerd, MN 56401 
Attn:  Executive Director 

The undersigned, LEVEL CONTRACTING, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company (the 
“Redeveloper”), pursuant to Sections 1 and 3 of that certain Grant Agreement, dated _________, 2025 (the 
“Grant Agreement”), between the Housing and Redevelopment Authority in and for the County of Crow 
Wing (the “County HRA”), the Housing and Redevelopment Authority in and for the City of Brainerd, 
Minnesota (the “Brainerd HRA”), and the Redeveloper, hereby requests reimbursement of the expenses listed 
on the attached Schedule A.  All capitalized terms used in this Reimbursement Request (“Request”) have the 
meaning given to them in the Grant Agreement. 

The total amount to be disbursed for reimbursement of costs paid by the Redeveloper in connection with the 
Infrastructure Project is: $ ______. 

After this payment of this amount, the remaining undisbursed balance of the Grants is $_____________.  Of 
such amount, $_________ of the Grant from the County HRA remains undisbursed,  and $_________ of the 
Grant from the Brainerd HRA remains undisbursed. 

In connection with this Request, the undersigned hereby represents as follows: 

1. The amount and nature and the name and address of the payee of each item of cost of the
Infrastructure Project paid by and requested to be reimbursed to the Redeveloper is attached hereto as
Schedule A, together with a canceled check or receipt for such payment.

2. Each item of cost for which reimbursement is requested is or was necessary in connection with the
Infrastructure Project, qualifies as an eligible cost under the Grant Agreement and was made or
incurred in accordance with the Infrastructure Project Plans and Budget currently in effect for the
Infrastructure Project.

3. No item of cost requested to be reimbursed by this Request has formed the basis for any previous
payment from Grant Proceeds.

4. No item of cost requested to be paid or reimbursed by this Request constitutes administration
expenses.

5. The balance of the Grant Proceeds remaining after disbursement of money in accordance with this
Request, together with any other money available to the Redeveloper for such purpose, will be
sufficient to pay the remaining costs of constructing the Infrastructure Project in accordance with the

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 64 of 120



4898-8253-4186.1  Exhibit A-2 

Infrastructure Project Plans and Budget. 
 

6. No license or permit necessary for construction of the Infrastructure Project previously issued has 
been revoked or the issuance thereof subjected to challenge before any court of other governmental 
authority having or asserting jurisdiction thereover. 
 

7. There has not been filed with or served upon the Redeveloper any notice of any lien, right to a lien or 
attachment upon or claim affecting the right of any such person to receive payment of the amount 
stated in this Request that has not been released or will not be released simultaneously with the 
payment of such obligation, except for liens arising from indebtedness then being diligently 
contested in good faith by the Redeveloper. 
 

8. No default by the Redeveloper under the Grant Agreement has occurred that has not been cured. 
 

9. All representations and warranties made by the Redeveloper in the Grant Agreement are true and 
correct on and as of the date of this Request with the same effect as if made on this date. 
 

Date: ________________, 20__ 
 

LEVEL CONTRACTING, LLC 
 
 
 
By:   
 
Its:    
 
 
 
APPROVED (as to County HRA Grant): 
 
HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY IN AND FOR THE CITY OF 
BRAINERD, MINNESOTA 

 
 

By: _________________________________ 
Its:  Executive Director  

 
 
APPROVED (as to Brainerd HRA Grant): 
 
HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY IN AND FOR THE CITY OF 
BRAINERD, MINNESOTA 

 
 

By: _________________________________ 
Its:  Executive Director  

 
 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 65 of 120



4898-8253-4186.1 Exhibit A-3 

Schedule A to Reimbursement Request 

Schedule of payee of each item of cost of the Infrastructure Project paid by and requested to be reimbursed to 
the Redeveloper pursuant to the Reimbursement Request to which this Schedule A is attached is below. A 
canceled check or receipt for or other evidence of each such payment is attached hereto. 

Payee Amount Purpose of Payment 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 66 of 120



1 
4913-2778-6543.2  

HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  
IN AND FOR CROW WING COUNTY 

Resolution No. 2025-02 

Resolution (1) Approving a Fourth Amendment to Master Purchase 
and Redevelopment Contract, (2) Approving the Sale of Land Located 
in the City of Brainerd, Crow Wing County, Minnesota (Outlots E and 
F), (3) Approving a Purchase and Redevelopment Contract, and (4) 
Approving a Grant Agreement in Connection with Redevelopment of 
Outlots E and F 

BE IT RESOLVED BY the Board of Commissioners (“Board”) of the Housing and Redevelopment 
Authority in and for the County of Crow Wing (the “Authority”) as follows: 

Section 1. Recitals. 

1.01. The Authority currently administers its Redevelopment Project No. 1 (the “Project”), 
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.001 to 469.047 (the “HRA Act”), as amended, the boundaries 
of which are coterminous with the geographic boundaries of Crow Wing County, Minnesota (the 
“County”). 

1.02. In connection with the Project, the Authority created a Redevelopment Plan for the Project 
(the “Redevelopment Plan”) providing for certain redevelopment activities to take place in the City of Brainerd, 
Minnesota (the “City”) within the Project, as shown in in Exhibit A to the Redevelopment Plan, including the 
area consisting of the Brainerd Oaks, Serene Pines, and Dal Mar Estates housing subdivisions.  Following a 
duly noticed public hearing held by the City Council of the City in accordance with the HRA Act, the City 
Council of the City approved the Redevelopment Plan by resolution adopted on September 6, 2016, and the 
Board of the Authority approved the Redevelopment Plan by resolution adopted on September 13, 2016. 

1.03. The Authority and Paxmar-Brainerd, LLC (the “Prior Redeveloper”) executed a Master 
Purchase and Redevelopment Contract, dated as of September 13, 2016 (the “Master PDA”), as amended by a 
First Amendment to Master Purchase and Redevelopment Contract dated November 8, 2016, as further 
amended by a Second Amendment to Master Purchase and Redevelopment Contract dated March 14, 2017, as 
further amended by a Third Amendment to Master Purchase and Redevelopment Contract dated as of April 12, 
2022, and as assigned by the Prior Redeveloper to and assumed by Level Contracting, LLC, a Minnesota 
limited liability company (the “Redeveloper”), pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption of Master Purchase 
and Redevelopment Contract dated as of October 8, 2019 (as so amended, assigned, and assumed, the 
“Contract”), providing for, among other things, the conveyance by the County of certain property within the 
Project and legally described within the Contract (the “Property”) to the Authority and purchase by the 
Redeveloper of such Property for the purpose of constructing owner-occupied single-family housing thereon 
“to foster the redevelopment [thereof] which for a variety of reasons is presently underutilized, to foster the 
development of workforce and market rate housing, and to increase the County’s tax base.” 

1.04. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.192, as amended, a housing and redevelopment 
authority may make a loan to a business, a for-profit or nonprofit organization, or an individual for any purpose 
that the housing and redevelopment authority is otherwise authorized to carry out under Section 469.001 of the 
HRA Act, including but not limited to providing a sufficient supply of adequate, safe, and sanitary dwellings 
in order to protect the health, safety, morals, and welfare of the citizens of the State of Minnesota (the “State”) 

Attachment 4d

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 67 of 120



2 
4913-2778-6543.2  

and, in cities of the first class (defined in Minnesota Statutes, Section 410.01, as amended to having more 
than 100,000 inhabitants), to provide housing for persons of all incomes. 

1.05. Pursuant to Section 469.041(6) of the HRA Act, the Authority may do any and all things 
necessary or convenient to aid and cooperate in the planning, undertaking, construction, or operation of 
projects, including a redevelopment project, which term is defined to include but is not limited to, any work or 
undertaking to acquire real property for purposes of preventing, blighting factors, or the causes of blight, to 
clear any areas acquired and install, construct or reconstruct streets, utilities, and site improvements essential 
to the preparation of sites for uses in accordance with the redevelopment plan, and to sell or lease land so 
acquired for uses in accordance with the redevelopment plan. 

1.06. The Housing and Redevelopment Authority in and for the City of Brainerd, Minnesota (the 
“Brainerd HRA”) currently owns two parcels, described as Outlot E and Outlot F, Brainerd Oaks in the 
County of Crow Wing, Minnesota (together, “Outlots E and F”), which are located within the Project and 
constitute underutilized property that could be developed into workforce and market rate housing.  To that 
end, the Board of Commissioners of the Brainerd HRA approved conveyance of Outlots E and F to the 
Authority by resolution adopted on March 26, 2025, and the Authority accepted conveyance thereof by 
resolution adopted by the Board of the Authority on March 11, 2025.   

1.07. The Authority desires to add Outlots E and F, as part of the Property subject to the Contract 
pursuant to a Fourth Amendment Master Purchase and Redevelopment Contract, by and between the 
Authority and the Redeveloper (the “Fourth Amendment to Contract”), the form of which has been 
presented to the Board, and the Redeveloper desires to purchase Outlots E and F for the purpose of 
constructing owner-occupied and/or rental twin homes thereon (the “Redeveloper Project”). 

1.08. On the date hereof, the Board of the Authority conducted a duly noticed public hearing on 
the sale of the Parcel to the Redeveloper pursuant to the Fourth Amendment to Contract, in accordance with 
Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.029, subdivision 2.  

1.09. The Authority and the Redeveloper propose to enter into a Purchase and Redevelopment 
Agreement (the “2025A Agreement”), the form of which has been presented to the Board, in accordance 
with and conforming to the Contract, as amended by the Fourth Amendment to Contract, pursuant to which the 
Authority will sell and the Redeveloper will purchase Outlots E and F, for a purchase price financed by a 
forgivable loan from the Authority to the Redeveloper, and the Redeveloper will construct the Redeveloper 
Project. 

1.010. In connection with the Redeveloper Project, the Authority and the Brainerd HRA have 
committed up to $150,000 and $100,000, respectively, of available funds to reimburse the Redeveloper for the 
costs of constructing certain roadway and other infrastructure improvements in connection with the 
Redeveloper Project (the “Infrastructure Improvements”), and to that end, the Authority, the Brainerd HRA, 
and the Redeveloper have negotiated a Grant Agreement (the “Grant Agreement”) for such committed funds, 
in the form presented to the Board. 

Section 2. Findings. 

2.01. (a) The Board finds that there is a need for redevelopment within the County and the 
Project to provide employment opportunities, to improve the local tax base, to provide housing, and to 
improve the general economy of the County and the State. The sound development of the economic security 
of the residents of the County depends upon proper development of marginal and other property, which 
includes property that meets any one of a number of conditions, including properties whose values are too 
low to pay for the public services required or rendered and properties whose lack of use or improper use 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 68 of 120



3 
4913-2778-6543.2  

has resulted in stagnant or unproductive land that could otherwise contribute to the public health, safety, 
and welfare.   

(b) The Board finds that in many cases such property cannot be developed without public
participation and assistance in forms including property acquisition and/or write down, proper planning, 
the financing of land assembly in the work of clearance or development, and the making or financing of 
various other public and private improvements necessary for redevelopment.  In cases where the 
development of property cannot be done by private enterprise alone, the Authority believes it to be in the 
public interest to consider the exercise of its powers, to advance and spend public money, and to provide 
the means and impetus for such redevelopment. 

(c) The Board finds that in certain cases, property within the Project would or may not be
available for redevelopment without the specific financial aid to be sought, that the Fourth Amendment to 
Contract will afford maximum opportunity, consistent with the needs of the County as a whole, for the 
redevelopment of the Project by private enterprise, and that the Fourth Amendment to Contract conforms 
to the general plan for the development of the County as a whole. 

(d) The Board also finds that the welfare of the County and the State requires the active
promotion, retention, attraction, encouragement, and redevelopment of economically sound industry and 
commerce through governmental action for the purpose of preventing the emergence of blighted lands and 
providing housing for persons of all incomes.  It shall also be the policy of the Authority to facilitate and 
encourage such action as may be necessary to prevent the economic deterioration of such areas to the point 
where the process can be reversed only by total redevelopment.  Through the use of the powers conferred 
on the HRA pursuant to the HRA Act, promoting economic development may eliminate conditions which 
have prevented normal development of land by private enterprise and have resulted in a stagnant and 
unproductive condition of land potentially useful and valuable for contributing to the public health, safety, 
and welfare. 

2.02. The Board has reviewed the Fourth Amendment to Contract and the 2025A Agreement and 
finds that the addition of Outlots E and F to the Contract pursuant to the Fourth Amendment to Contract 
and the sale of Outlots E and F to the Redeveloper pursuant to the 2025A Agreement conforms to the 
provisions of the Contract, as amended. The performance of the Authority’s obligations under the Fourth 
Amendment to Contract and the 2025A Agreement are in the best interest of the County and will foster 
redevelopment of Outlots E and F, which are each presently underutilized, to provide workforce and market 
rate housing and will increase the County’s tax base, all in accordance with the Redevelopment Plan. 

2.02. The Board has reviewed the Grant Agreement and finds that committing up to $150,000 of 
available funds to reimburse the Redeveloper for the costs of constructing the Infrastructure Improvements 
pursuant to the Grant Agreement and performance of the Authority’s obligations thereunder are in the best 
interest of the County, for the reasons stated in Section 2.01 of this resolution. 

Section 3. Approval of Fourth Amendment to Contract, Sale of Outlots E and F, 2025A 
Agreement, and Grant Agreement 

3.01. The Fourth Amendment to Contract as presented to the Board is hereby in all respects 
approved, subject to modifications that do not alter the substance of the transaction and that are approved 
by the Chair and Executive Director, provided that execution of the Fourth Amendment to Contract by such 
officials shall be conclusive evidence of approval. 

3.02. The sale by the Authority of Outlots E and F to the Redeveloper pursuant to the 2025A 
Agreement is approved.  

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 69 of 120



4 
4913-2778-6543.2  

3.03. The 2025A Agreement as presented to the Board, including the sale of Outlots E and F 
described therein, is hereby in all respects approved, subject to modifications that do not alter the substance 
of the transaction and that are approved by the Chair and Executive Director, provided that execution of the 
documents by such officials shall be conclusive evidence of approval. 

3.04. The Grant Agreement as presented to the Board is hereby in all respects approved, subject to 
modifications that do not alter the substance of the transaction and that are approved by the Chair and Executive 
Director, provided that execution of the Grant Agreement by such officials shall be conclusive evidence of 
approval.  

3.05. The Chair and Executive Director are hereby authorized to execute on behalf of the 
Authority the Fourth Amendment to Contract, the 2025A Agreement, and the Grant Agreement and any 
documents or certificates necessary to carry out the transactions described in the Fourth Amendment to 
Contract and the 2025A Agreement, including without limitation any deeds, and in the Grant Agreement, 
and to carry out, on behalf of the Authority, its obligations thereunder. 

3.06. Authority staff and consultants are authorized to take any actions necessary to carry out the 
intent of this resolution. 

Approved by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority in and for 
the County of Crow Wing this 8th day of April, 2025. 

Chair 

ATTEST: 

Secretary 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 70 of 120



To: CWC HRA Board Members 

From: Eric Charpentier, Executive Director 

Date: April 8th, 2025 

Re: Housing Trust Fund Loan Request – New Development Financing 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

My Neighbor to Love Coalition (MNTLC), a Minnesota nonprofit corporation, has applied for funding through 
the Housing Trust Fund for a new development project located at 610 3rd Street NW in Brainerd.  The 
financing request is to construct a new 12-plex multi-family housing development titled Creekside North.  
These funds will be used to bridge the financing gap between grant funding, fundraising and a private loan.  
The owner of the pledged real estate will be My Neighbor to Love Coalition and our mortgage would be in a 
first lien position on the real estate and building.  MNTLC has hired a property manager, and their board will 
oversee the tenant selection for these units.   

The building will have 10 studio apartments and 2 two-bedroom apartments with the stated goal of having all 
of these units affordable at or below 80% of the area median income (AMI).  6 of the studio apartments are 
targeted to be affordable to those at 30% or lower of the AMI while another 5 of the units will be targeted to 
be affordable to individuals or families at or below 50% of the AMI.  The housing units are intended to bring 
people out of homelessness and to provide them with safe, decent and affordable housing for as long as they 
need.  The tenants will have a month-to-month lease and are welcome to stay in their unit for as long as they 
need.   

Per our housing trust fund guidelines that have been approved by this board, the primary purpose of the HTF 
is to assist in financing the production, preservation/stabilization of affordable and mixed-income housing 
projects in Crow Wing County.  Our targeted population for the HTF is very low, low and moderate-income 
individuals.  For our rental housing developments, we do encourage projects that address chronic 
homelessness and/or housing for extremely low-income households or households whose income does not 
exceed 30% AMI.  This request does meet our guidelines for a preferred project for funding.   

This building is at the end stages of construction.  MNTLC originally applied for funding for this specific 
project at the end of 2023.  This project is now coming to the board for review as it is next in line in our loan 
queue and we have the funding currently available in our fund to be able to make a decision on financing.  As 
we have stated before, the housing trust fund is a first come first reviewed which is why there was a delay 
from application to full review.   

Attachment 5

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 71 of 120



The Creekside Project does have a loan offer from the Initiative Foundation that carries with it a 1% interest 
rate amortized over 20 years with a 5-year balloon.  This loan offer is for $225,000 worth of financing.  This 
funding would help close the gap for this project, but does come with an amortizing loan payment required 
monthly.  With that monthly payment requirement, the project’s debt service coverage ratio (DSCR) drops 
below 1.0X, meaning the project would not cash flow.  If our board approves funding in the proposed amount 
of $382,000, this project would no longer need the Initiative Foundation’s loan, which decreases the project’s 
debt service requirements and improves the DSCR to 1.46X.  This change in financing changes the dynamic 
for the development and allows them to cash flow their operations and to stabilize their operations.  The HTF 
loan does not have a monthly payment requirement and would have a balloon payment due at maturity.  The 
HTF loan is critical to the success of this housing development.     

MNTLC have worked tirelessly to bring this housing vision to Crow Wing County and they are committed to 
continuing to make these housing developments happen.  They currently have plans and 100% of their 
financing needs for a 2nd 12-plex to be built to the South of these units.  MNTLC will have a stronger ability to 
cash flow both housing developments because of the funding that they have secured for their next project.  

Included in this loan request is the application, design drawings, pro forma statement, debt obligations, 
sources and uses of funds along with additional documentation.  

I have asked representatives from MNTLC to be available to speak about this project and to answer any 
questions that the board may have.    

Staff is recommending that this proposed project be approved in the amount of $382,000, representing 20% 
of the project funding.  The proposed loan would carry a 1% interest rate, a 20-year term maturity with a 
balloon payment required at maturity.   

Action Requested: Staff recommends approval of the housing trust fund loan request of $382,000 for a 20-
year balloon term with 1% interest, due at maturity.  

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 72 of 120



MNTLC – Creekside Community Request 

Funding Amount Requested  $450,000.00 

Total Project Costs $1,910,348.00 

20% of Project Costs $382,000.00 (20% of project costs is a typical high mark for 
gap financing) 

Annual Operating Revenue $62,700 (Assuming 5% vacancy rate) 

$425/mo for studio 

$625/mo for 2 bedroom 

Estimated Annual Operating Cost (Year 1) $27,480 

Annual Debt Service w/ HTF Loan $24,000 

NOI  w/ HTF Loan  $35,220 

DSCR w/ HTF Loan  1.467 

Annual Debit Service w/o HTF Loan $36,420 

NOI w/o HTF Loan  $35,220 

DSCR w/o HTF Loan  .967 

Funding Sources 

Federal Home Loan Bank $600,000 

Donations $155,000 

Private Loan  $600,000 

Private Loan (LOC)  $173,348 (Up to $200,000 available) 

HTF Proposed Loan  $382,000 

Total  $1,910,348 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 73 of 120



Funding Uses  

Total Development Costs   $1,910,348 

 

1st Lien Position on Real Estate and Property – Strong Equity Position on Loan to Value 

Margins are tight for cash flow – Management could look at housing assistance through 
vouchers to increase unit revenue in the future 

Operation will not be sustainable w/o the HTF loan as the organization can’t afford the 
proposed monthly debt payment with the addition of the Initiative Foundation loan 

HTF Loan would balloon at maturity (20-year term) and not add to the DSCR 

Fits within the mission and the stated focus points of our HTF 

The HTF funding would stabilize the development to help its viability 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 74 of 120



2 

New Development/Redevelopment 

Financing Program 

Borrower Application 

INSTRUCTIONS: Complete all information on this application. Please print. Use Ink. 

General Project Information 

Project Name:  ___ Creekside Community 12-plex_________________________________________________________________ 

 Site Address(es) ___610 3rd Street NW  City ___Brainerd__________ County ___Crow Wing 

Zip Code ___56401 

Total Amount of Funding Requested $__425,000 to $450,000__ 

 Grant  $________________ 

 Loan  $425,000 to $450,000______ 

Period of Affordability _________15____ years (minimum 15 years) 

Number of buildings: __1______, number of units: _12_______, type of units: Studio/ 2-Bedroom 

 New construction rental  New construction ownership 
 Rehabilitation rental  Rehabilitation ownership 
 Conversion rental  Conversion ownership 
 Preservation rental  Preservation ownership 

Building Type 

 Single family  Condominium 
 Duplex  Twin Home 
 Townhome  Manufactured home 

Project specifics (priority will be given to projects with the greatest percentage of affordable units) 

Population served Total 0 BR 1 BR 2 BR 3 BR 4BR 
Extremely Low Income (at or below 30% AMI) 6 6 0 
Very Low Income (at or below 50% AMI 5 3 2 
Low Income (at or below 80% AMI) 1 1 
Moderately Low Income (at or below 115% AMI 
Workforce Housing (between 50% to 115% AMI, at 
least one household member employed 
Market Rate 
Employee Occupied 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 75 of 120

X

X

X



3 

Other: 

Affordability Units of Ownership Projects 

Applicant acknowledges that the price must be affordable to households with incomes at or below 115% 
AMI , and shall include mortgage payments, property taxes, insurance, and Homeowners’ Association dues (if 
applicable) that are no greater than 30% of gross income for a household at or below 115% AMI.  

For each type of unit, list the following on an annual basis: 

Unit Size 0 BR 1 BR 2 BR 3 BR 4 BR 
Sales price 

Property tax 
Insurance 
Association 
Total annual 

Targeting of Units (Indicate type and % of units) 

 Families with children 16_% 
 Housing for older persons ____% 
 Persons will physical disabilities ____% 
 Persons with mental disabilities ____% 
 Homeless 90_% 
 Other: ___________________ ____%    90% of the units will be for individuals and families 

experiencing homelessness.  The elderly, and persons with physical and mental challenges will likely 
be part of that demographic. 

Supportive services 

 Will be provided 
 Included in rent 
 Not included in rent, estimated cost per month $ ___________________ 

 Will not be provided  

Provide a description of the service(s) or special accommodations:  We will match residents to services______ 

_already provided in the Brainerd area.  We will also be offering onsite classes in Life Skills & Employment 

Readiness.  Offering onsite support groups is also in the plans.  Once a community building is constructed, other 

services will be offered to support physical and mental health. 

Description of accessibility related to housing __Some units will be handicapped accessible. ___________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Letter of intent from service agency attached 
 Evidence of prior experience with housing projects that provide 

supportive services attached  
 Information on compliance with federal and state accessibility standards 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 76 of 120

X



4  

 
 

 
 

 

Developer/Applicant Information  
 

 
 
Applicant/Developer ___ My Neighbor to Love Coalition   

Applicant Federal Taxpayer ID No. __87-2234045  

Mailing Address __P.O. Box 581      

City ___ Nisswa   State __MN  Zip Code  56468  

Contact Person __Vicky Kinney      

Phone No. __218-821-7875  Email__vickyjokinney@yahoo.com 

E-Mail Address __ alternate email:  vicky@mntlc.org  
 

 Lead Developer (majority interest in project) 
 Joint Venture party (minority interest in project) 

 
Contact Person During Application Process (if different from the applicant) 

Contact Person          

Company         

Mailing Address          

City    State   Zip Code    

Phone No.            Email       

 

Joint Venture Entity (if applicable)    

Joint Venture Federal Taxpayer ID No.   

Mailing Address       

City   State   Zip Code    

Contact Person       

Phone No.    Email       

 
 Lead Developer  
 Joint venture minority interest  
    
Attachments  

 
 Copy of Joint Venture Agreement  
 

 
 
 
 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 77 of 120

X



5 

Has the Lead Developer previously developed and operated multifamily housing? If yes please list the project(s)  

below and attach additional sheets if necessary. No   Yes _X  

Project name and location ___Creekside Community 4-plex,  310 Jackson Street, Brainerd, MN_________________ 

Date of completion ___September 1, 2023____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Project description ___4-plex apartment complex of studio apartments ________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Project name and location _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Date of completion _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Project description _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Use Of Funds 

Construction 

Describe proposed use of funds: __Funds will be used toward the construction of a 12-plex apartment complex having 
10 studio units and 2 two-bedroom units.   Total projects cost estimates are $1,910,378 plus an additional $65,000 for 
landscaping and appliances.  Construction costs per Nor-Son Construction total $1,810,117.____ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Acquisition 

Applicant acknowledges that the purchase price of the property to be acquired shall not exceed its appraised 
value unless the HRA finds that the project’s merit justifies a higher price; provided that the appraised value 
does not exceed the purchase price by more than 10%.  

Describe proposed use of funds _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 78 of 120



6  

 
 
Conversion to residential 
 

Applicant acknowledges that they must include activities to make building safe, decent, and sanitary and to 
abate potential lead exposure. 

 
Describe proposed use of funds _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Relocation  
 
Describe proposed use of funds _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 

Rehabilitation 
 

Describe proposed use of funds _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Administrative fees 
 
 Applicant acknowledges that no administrative fees may not exceed 10 percent of the loan amount.  
 
Describe proposed use of funds ___No funds will be used toward administrative fees._____________________________ 

 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Other 
 
 
Describe proposed use of funds _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 79 of 120



7 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Pro Forma 

Provide a projection of cash flow (Pro forma) using the total Project income from rent and including all expenses for 
the entire mortgage period. This Pro forma will be calculated using the following prescribed method: Potential Gross 
Income less Vacancy Loss equals Effective Gross Income, less Operating Expenses equals Net Operating Income, less 
Debt Service equals Cash Flow. Project the cash flow annually. 

 Pro forma attached.  

Cost Effectiveness 

Projected cost per square foot $___2.74_____ 

Projected cost per affordable unit $ _Average of $ 145,000 per unit_____ 

 Documentation supporting cost effectiveness attached 

Other financing sources (attach additional pages if necessary) 

Name of Source __FHLB Des Moines____________________________________________________________________________ 

Address ________909 Locust Street #500________________________________________________________________________ 

City __Des Moines_______________State _IA____________Zip Code _50309_______ Phone ____800-544-3452___________ 

Amount of funds __$600,000______ Interest rate _______________ Term ________________ Construction/Permanent (circle) 

Repayment Terms _______This is a subsity/grant. No repayment required.___________________________________________ 

Name of Source _____Private party - line of credit, Vicky Kinney___________________________________ 

Address ____8660 Fernmont Road_______________________________________________________________________________ 

City ____Lake Shore_____________State ___MN____Zip Code __56468________ Phone ____218-821-7875___________________ 

Amount of funds __up to $800,000__ Interest rate ____0%_______ Term _30 to 40 years___ Construction/Permanent 

Repayment Terms _Monthly payments of $2000 on loan will commence once 12-plex units are filled and will increase 
to $2,800/ month once additional rental units are constructed and filled.  

Name of Source ___U Care Foundation & Results Foundation 

Address ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

City ______________________________State ____MN________Zip Code _______________ Phone ______________________________________ 

Amount of funds _$60,000 + $10,000____ Interest rate _____Term __ Construction/Permanent (circle) Repayment 
Terms _Grant ($15,000 for ADA interior construction and $45,000 for exterior features & $10,000 for 
construction.)______ 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 80 of 120

X

X



8  

 

 

Name of Source ___Initiative Foundation_________________________________________________________ 

Address ____405 1st Street SE_________________________________________________________ 

City _Little Falls   _State MN___Zip Code ___56345_______ Phone ______Amount of funds _$225,000__  

Interest rate _1% fixed___Term:_20 year Amoritization, 5 year balloon__ 

Construction/Permanent (circle) Repayment Terms__$1035 monthly 

 

Document Checklist 

 

 

 

 Letter of intent from service agency providing supportive services (if applicable) 

 Evidence of prior experience with housing projects that provide supportive services (if applicable) 

 Joint Venture Agreement (if applicable) 

 Pro Forma 

 Documentation supporting cost effectiveness 

 Information on compliance with federal and state accessibility standards 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 81 of 120

X

X

X



9 

Applicant Certification 

The undersigned hereby acknowledges the following: 

Applicant acknowledges that submission of an application does not ensure approval, and that, if this application is 
approved for funding, such funding will be further contingent on entering into an agreement with the Crow Wing 
County HRA that will clearly the conditions and requirements connecting with the funding. 

Applicant certifies that it has reviewed the Housing Trust Fund guidelines and the Housing Trust Fund Ordinance 
and understands and accepts the information in those documents regarding the evaluation of this application and 
further requirements related to the receipt of funds.  

Applicant certifies that the statements contained in this application and its attachments are true, accurate and 
compete to the best of its knowledge and belief. If any of the information included in this Application changes prior 
to the receipt of funds, Applicant agrees to notify the Crow Wing County HRA of these changes within 5 business 
days.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, being duly authorized, has caused this document to be executed in its 
name on this 7      day of  February , 20 25    . 

       Vicky Kinney 

Legal Name of Applicant 

Signature 

     Executive Director             2/07/2025 

Title Date 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 82 of 120



W.H.

D.

W.H.

D.

W.H.

D.

W.H.

D.

W.H.

D.

W.H.

D.

UP

D.

W.H.

D
W

W
D

D.

D.

W.H.

D.

A3002

E
A
S
T

E
L
E
V
A
T
IO
N

A300

A300

A300

1 NORTH

ELEVATION

4

W
E
S
T

E
L
E
V
A
T
IO
N

3

SOUTH

ELEVATION

114' - 0"

COMMON

ROOM

101

ENTRY

100

LAUNDRY

105

UTILITY

104

UNISEX

103

STUDIO

106

STUDIO

107

2 BED

108

STUDIO

109

STUDIO

110

STUDIO

111

2 BED

112

STUDIO

113

STORAGE

102

STAIRS

200

18' - 0" 20' - 0" 20' - 0" 18' - 0" 20' - 0" 18' - 0"

2
0

' -
 0

"
2

0
' -

 0
"

4
0

' -
 0

"

DATEREVISION#

PROJECT NUMBER:

PRINTED:

© 2023 Nor-Son, Inc. All rights reserved.

1/15/2024 4:29:01 PM

M.L. - FLOOR PLAN

A100

B
R
A

IN
ER

D
, 
M

N
 5

6
4

0
1

M
Y
 N

EI
G

H
B
O

R
 T

O
 L

O
V

E 
C

O
A

LI
TI

O
N

-
1

2
 P

LE
X

PRELIMINARY

3642

1/4" = 1'-0"A100

1 LEVEL 01 FLOOR PLAN

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 83 of 120



UP

W.H.
D

.
W.H.

D
.

D
.

W.H.W.H.

A3002

E
A
S
T

E
L
E
V
A
T
IO
N

A300

A300

1 NORTH

ELEVATION

4

W
E
S
T

E
L
E
V
A
T
IO
N

4
0

' -
 0

"

STAIRS

200

HALL

201

STUDIO

202

STUDIO

203

STUDIO

204

STUDIO

205

20' - 3 1/4" 4' - 6 3/4" 20' - 3 1/4"

2
0

' -
 0

"
2

0
' -

 0
"

DATEREVISION#

PROJECT NUMBER:

PRINTED:

© 2023 Nor-Son, Inc. All rights reserved.

1/15/2024 4:29:02 PM

U.L. - FLOOR PLAN

A110

B
R
A

IN
ER

D
, 
M

N
 5

6
4

0
1

M
Y
 N

EI
G

H
B
O

R
 T

O
 L

O
V

E 
C

O
A

LI
TI

O
N

-
1

2
 P

LE
X

PRELIMINARY

3642

1/4" = 1'-0"A110

1 LEVEL 02 FLOOR PLAN

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 84 of 120



DATEREVISION#

PROJECT NUMBER:

PRINTED:

© 2023 Nor-Son, Inc. All rights reserved.

1/15/2024 4:29:18 PM

BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A300

B
R
A

IN
ER

D
, 
M

N
 5

6
4

0
1

M
Y
 N

EI
G

H
B
O

R
 T

O
 L

O
V

E 
C

O
A

LI
TI

O
N

-
1

2
 P

LE
X

PRELIMINARY

3642

3/16" = 1'-0"A300

1 NORTH ELEVATION

3/16" = 1'-0"A300

2 EAST ELEVATION

3/16" = 1'-0"A300

3 SOUTH ELEVATION
3/16" = 1'-0"A300

4 WEST ELEVATION

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 85 of 120



These data are provided on an "AS-IS"
basis, without warranty of any type,
expressed or implied, including but
not limited to any warranty as to their
performance, merchantability, or fitness
for any particular purpose. Date: 4/3/2025 Time: 2:40 PM

Creekside Community South

Ë
CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 86 of 120



Project Name: Creekside Community 12-plex

# Units: 12

Housing Assumptions
Vacancy Rate Year 1: 5.00%

Stabilized Vacancy Rate Years 2-15: 2.00%

Revenue Escalator: 2.00%

Expense Escalator: 3.00%

Interest Rate on Operating Reserve: 

Income Assumptions Revenue Escalator 2.00% Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13 Year 14 Year 15

Gross Residential Rents From Project Worksheet 62,400 63,648 64,921 66,219 67,544 68,895 70,273 71,678 73,112 74,574 76,065 77,587 79,138 80,721 82,335

Rental Subsidy (a) From Project Worksheet 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Laundry, Parking, Other From Oper. Assumptions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Operating Grants & Donations From Oper. Assumptions 0

Operating Reserve Draws From Oper. Assumptions 0

Total Gross Income 62,400 63,648 64,921 66,219 67,544 68,895 70,273 71,678 73,112 74,574 76,065 77,587 79,138 80,721 82,335

Less: Vacancy & Bad Debt Stabilized Vacancy Year 2-15 2.00% 3,120 1,273 1,298 1,324 1,351 1,378 1,405 1,434 1,462 1,491 1,521 1,552 1,583 1,614 1,647

Net Revenue (EGI) 59,280 62,375 63,623 64,895 66,193 67,517 68,867 70,244 71,649 73,082 74,544 76,035 77,556 79,107 80,689

Expense Assumptions Expense Escalator 3.00%

Management Fee 600 618 637 656 675 696 716 738 760 783 806 831 855 881 908

Administrative/Office expenses 600 618 637 656 675 696 716 738 760 783 806 831 855 881 908

Advertising 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Legal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Accounting & Audit 1,400 1,442 1,485 1,530 1,576 1,623 1,672 1,722 1,773 1,827 1,881 1,938 1,996 2,056 2,118

Utilities Owner 2,700 2,781 2,864 2,950 3,039 3,130 3,224 3,321 3,420 3,523 3,629 3,737 3,850 3,965 4,084

Water, Sewer, Trash 1,380 1,421 1,464 1,508 1,553 1,600 1,648 1,697 1,748 1,801 1,855 1,910 1,968 2,027 2,087

Maintenance/Repair 2,400 2,472 2,546 2,623 2,701 2,782 2,866 2,952 3,040 3,131 3,225 3,322 3,422 3,524 3,630

Grounds Maintenance 400 412 424 437 450 464 478 492 507 522 538 554 570 587 605

Security 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract Services From Oper. Assumptions 6,700 6,901 7,108 7,321 7,541 7,767 8,000 8,240 8,487 8,742 9,004 9,274 9,553 9,839 10,134

Payroll (incl. taxes & benefits) From Oper. Assumptions 6,000 6,180 6,365 6,556 6,753 6,956 7,164 7,379 7,601 7,829 8,063 8,305 8,555 8,811 9,076

Real Estate Taxes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Insurance 4,800 4,944 5,092 5,245 5,402 5,565 5,731 5,903 6,080 6,263 6,451 6,644 6,844 7,049 7,260

Other Expenses: From Oper. Assumptions 500 515 530 546 563 580 597 615 633 652 672 692 713 734 756

Partnership Management Fee (LIHTC only)

Other Expenses:

Total Operating Expenses Oper Cost/Unit $2,290 27,480 28,304 29,154 30,028 30,929 31,857 32,813 33,797 34,811 35,855 36,931 38,039 39,180 40,355 41,566

Staff Use $2,290

NOI Before Reserve Deposits 31,800 34,071 34,469 34,867 35,264 35,660 36,055 36,447 36,838 37,227 37,613 37,996 38,376 38,751 39,123

Reserves

Replacement Reserve Deposits 3,600 3,708 3,819 3,934 4,052 4,173 4,299 4,428 4,560 4,697 4,838 4,983 5,133 5,287 5,445

Operating Reserve Deposits 0

Net Operating Income 28,200 30,363 30,650 30,933 31,212 31,487 31,756 32,020 32,278 32,530 32,775 33,013 33,243 33,465 33,677

Debt Service (Must Pay only)

Annual Must Pay Debt 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000

Annual Must Pay Debt 12,420 12,420 12,420 12,420 12,420 12,420 12,420 12,420 12,420 12,420 12,420 12,420 12,420 12,420 12,420

Other Must Pay Debt

Total Debt Service 27,420 27,420 27,420 27,420 27,420 27,420 27,420 27,420 27,420 27,420 27,420 27,420 27,420 27,420 27,420

Debt Coverage Ratio (DCR) before Soft Debt 1.03 1.11 1.12 1.13 1.14 1.15 1.16 1.17 1.18 1.19 1.20 1.20 1.21 1.22 1.23

Initial Cash Flow 780 2,943 3,230 3,513 3,792 4,067 4,336 4,600 4,858 5,110 5,355 5,593 5,823 6,045 6,257

Debt Service Payable from Cash Flow to:

Debt Service Payable from Cash Flow to:

Deferred Developer Fee

Other:

Secondary Cash Flow $780 $2,943 $3,230 $3,513 $3,792 $4,067 $4,336 $4,600 $4,858 $5,110 $5,355 $5,593 $5,823 $6,045 $6,257

Secondary Cash Flow per unit $65 $245 $269 $293 $316 $339 $361 $383 $405 $426 $446 $466 $485 $504 $521

Debt Coverage Ratio (DCR) 1.03 1.11 1.12 1.13 1.14 1.15 1.16 1.17 1.18 1.19 1.20 1.20 1.21 1.22 1.23

Cash Flow / Gross Income 1.25% 4.62% 4.97% 5.31% 5.61% 5.90% 6.17% 6.42% 6.64% 6.85% 7.04% 7.21% 7.36% 7.49% 7.60%

Operating Reserve Deposits/(Draws) From Summary of Uses -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$   -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$   -$  

Interest on Operating Reserve -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$   -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$   -$  

Cumulative Operating Reserve -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$   -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$   -$  

Cumulative 5-yr cash flow: $14,258

Cumulative 5-yr cash flow/unit/year: $238

Cumulative 15-yr Repaid Deferred Developer Fee: $0

Enter Description Here

Enter Description Here

Enter housing data in shaded cells.  Enter income, expenses, and debt service 

for supportive services and commercial space on 

Supplementary_Op_Pro_Formas.

Flat Fee/Unit

Exempt

Unit utilities paid by:

Enter Description Here

Enter Description Here

Operating Pro Forma - Housing

Enter Description Here

If yes, list the existing source(s) of debt and loan terms:

Yes

No

Does the Proforma reflect debt service payments for any existing 

or other debt not reflected in the Sources of Funds? Existing Debt Holder
Outstanding 

Balance

Annual Debt 

Service

Remaining 

Term

(Years)

Amortization 

(Years)

Interest Rate

(APR)

Federal Home Loan Bank of Des Moines AHP Application Op_Pro_Forma_Hsg: Page 1 of 1

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 87 of 120



Project Name: 

Total Units: 12

Project will include:

Project is:

Income Targeting # Units Rental Income

Bedroom 

Size
# Units

<=50% <= 50% AMI 11 Annual Rent $62,400 0 = SRO 10

51%-60% 51% - 60% AMI 0 Tenant's Share $62,400 1 0

61%-80% 61% - 80% AMI 1 Rental Subsidy $0 2 2

Over 80% Over 80% AMI 0 3 0

Total Units 12 4 0

2

Activity Type State County
# of 

Units

Bedrooms 

per Unit

Assumed 

HH Size

Targeted 

Income

Target Income 

for Maximum 

Rents

Total 

Monthly 

Rent

Tenant’s 

Monthly Rent 

Share

Housing 

Ratio

Annual Rent 

Amount

New Construction/Adaptive Reuse MN Crow Wing 9 0 1 <=50% $29,200 $400 $400 16.44% $43,200

New Construction/Adaptive Reuse MN Crow Wing 1 0 1 61%-80% $46,700 $400 $400 10.28% $4,800

New Construction/Adaptive Reuse MN Crow Wing 2 2 3 <=50% $37,500 $600 $600 19.20% $14,400

0.00% $0

0.00% $0

0.00% $0

0.00% $0

0.00% $0

0.00% $0

0.00% $0

0.00% $0

0.00% $0

0.00% $0

0.00% $0

0.00% $0

0.00% $0

0.00% $0

Totals can be found at top of page!

Only multi-family buildings (5+ units/building)

New Construction

Rental Project Worksheet

Amounts in income targeting and rental income chart will populate with information entered in shaded areas of table below.  Be sure to include manager's unit as part of the total units in the project.

Creekside Community 12-plex

Absorption period (lease-up) per market study or timeline, in number of months:

Federal Home Loan Bank of Des Moines AHP Application Project_Worksheet: Page 1 of 1CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 88 of 120



Item Value

Total units 12

Cost Breakout Total Units = Project Worksheet Total Units TRUE

Sources of Funds = Uses of Funds TRUE

Housing Sources of Funds = Housing Uses of Funds TRUE

Non-Housing Sources = Non-Housing Uses TRUE

Total Development Cost $1,910,348.00

Total Development Cost per unit $159,195.67

Total Development Cost per square foot $300.18

Adjusted Total Development Cost $1,741,767.00

Adjusted Total Development Cost per Unit $145,147.25

Total Acquisition Cost per unit $4,512.25

Acquisition-Only Cost per Square Foot $0.00

Rehabilitation Cost per Square Foot (From Cost Breakout tab) $0.00

New Construction Cost per Square Foot (From Cost Breakout tab) $231.65

Construction/Rehabilitation Cost per square foot (Summary of Uses total) $273.69

Average Square Foot per unit 530

Average Acquisition-Only Square Foot per unit 0

Average Rehabilitation Square Foot per unit 0

Average New Construction Square Foot per unit 530

Non-housing & Accessory Space % 0.00%

Commercial % 0.00%

Feasibility Guidelines
Guideline Min Standard Max Standard Actual

Adjusted Total Development 

Cost per Unit
NA

Must be supported by 

industry construction 

cost data

$145,147.25 Requires explanation in AHP Online

Contingency % (Housing) NA 10.00% 2.77%

Contingency % (Overall) New Construction NA 10.00% 2.77%

Developer & Consultant Fee 

% 0.00% 15.00% 0.00%

Capitalized Reserves - 

Housing (months)
0.0 12.0 0.00

Capitalized Reserves - 

Overall (months)
0.0 12.0 0.00

Lease-Up Reserve 0.0% 75.0% 0.0%

Rental Assistance Reserve 0.0% Variable $0.00

  General Requirements % NA 8% 7.94%

  Builder Overhead % NA 2% 1.93%

  Builder Profit % NA 6% 4.38%

NA 20.00% 14.25%

  Architect Fees NA 4.0% 1.36%

  Engineering Fees NA 4.0% 1.11%

    Attorney Fees NA 4.0% 0.00%

NA 12.0% 2.48%

Operating Pro Forma

  Revenue Escalator 2.00% 4.00% 2.00%

  Expense Escalator 2.00% 4.00% 3.00%

  Escalator Trend NA NA TRUE

  Stabilized Vacancy Rate 0.00% 10.00% 2.00%

0.00% 12.00% 1.01%

0.00% $55.00 $4.17

Management Fee NA NA TRUE

Total Operating 

Expense/Unit
$1,250.00 $8,000.00 $2,290.00

Replacement Res./Unit $250.00 $400.00 $300.00

Operating Reserves $0.00 Variable $0.00

DCR - Housing NA 1.40 1.03

DCR - Overall NA NA 1.03

Cash Flow as Percentage of Gross Income NA 15.00% 1.25%

Expense to Income Ratio NA NA 98.68%

  Deferred Developer Fee - Sources $0.00

  Deferred Developer Fee - Cumulative Repaid $0.00

  Deferred Developer Fee - Match TRUE

Total Cash Flow in First Fifteen Years - Overall NA NA $66,300.79

LIHTC $0.75 NA NA

Sources

New Construction

  Sum of all Professional Fees

Deferred Developer Fee  MATCH

Management Fee as a Percentage of Net Revenue

Management Fee Per Unit/Per Month

Debt Service Calculation

AHP Feasibility Analysis

Lease-up Rsrv / ((Op Ex + 

Replacement Rsrv + Debt 

Svc)/12*[absorption period]) 

Description

New Construction

Development Budget

[(Tot Proj Reserves - LeaseUp Rsrv - 

Rental Assistance Rsrv) / (Op Ex + 

Replacement Rsrvs + debt service)] 

/ 12 months 

[(Tot Proj Reserves - LeaseUp Rsrv - 

Rental Assistance Rsrv) / (Op Ex + 

Replacement Rsrvs + debt service)] 

/ 12 months 

Expense escalator>=Revenue 

escalator

General requirements

See AHP Implementation Plan Rental 

Project Development Budget – Per 

Unit Development Cost

New Construction

Professsional Fees

Management Fee

General Requirements, Builder Overhead & Profit (combined 

total)

Federal Home Loan Bank of Des Moines AHP Application Feasibility_Guidelines: Page 1 of 1
CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 89 of 120



Project Name: 

Description Code

 1. AHP Subsidy 9. State Low Income Housing Tax Credit Equity 17. Charitable Donation

 2. Permanent Financing 10. State Housing Loans 18. Owner’s Equity

 3. FHA Insured Mortgage 11. State Government Subsidy 19. Deferred Developer Fee

 4. Federal Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Equity 12. Community Development Block Grants

 5. Other Federal Housing Program (HOPE VI, 202, 811, Section 8) 13. TIF/Local Government Subsidy

 6. McKinney/Hearth Act 14. Housing Bonds

 7. Historic Preservation Tax Credit Equity 15. Grants

 8. HOME 16. Other Loans

Permanent Sources Please do not cut and paste in the table below.

A B C D E F G H I J K L *For FHLBDM Use*

Amort Annual Debt Svc Annual Debt Svc

Non-Housing Total Descr Status Period (Housing) (Non-Housing) Must Pay?

(B+C) Code Code (years) Must Pay Only Must Pay Only (Y/N)

Deferred Developer Fee  $    -  19 N -$     

LIHTC Equity  $    -  4 N -$     

Loan - 0% interest - private party  $    600,000.00  $    600,000.00 16 Committed 0.000% 40.0 40.0  $    15,000 Y -$     

Loan - Initiative Foundation 225,000.00$      $    225,000.00 16 Committed 1.000% 20.0 20.0  $    12,420 Y 12,417$     

Grant - Ucare Foundation  $    60,000.00  $    60,000.00 15 Committed N -$     

Grant - Results Foundation  $    10,000.00  $    10,000.00 15 Committed N -$     

Donations  $    415,348.00  $    415,348.00 17 Committed N -$     

 $    -  -$     

 $    -  -$     

 $    -  -$     

 $    -  -$     

 $    -  -$     

 $    -  -$     

 AHP Direct Subsidy  $    600,000.00 1 Requested -$     

Subtotal - Housing  $    1,910,348.00  $    27,420 -$     

Subtotal - Non-Housing    $    -   $    - -$     

Total Funding Sources  $    1,910,348.00 Total Debt Service:  $    27,420 -$     

Annual LIHTC allocation request

LIHTC sale price per dollar

Describe how the LIHTC sales price was determined.

Interim Sources Please do not cut and paste in the table below.

A B C D E F G I J K L *For FHLBDM Use*

Total Total Debt Svc per

Non-Housing Total Descr Status Debt Service Debt Service Must Pay? Indicated Terms

(B+C) Code Code (Housing) (Non-Housing) (Y/N)

Deferred Developer Fee  $    -  19 N -$     

LIHTC Equity  $    -  4 N -$     

 $    -  -$     

 $    -  -$     

 $    -  -$     

 $    -  -$     

 $    -  -$     

 $    -  -$     

 $    -  -$     

 $    -  -$     

 $    -  -$     

 $    -  -$     

 $    -  -$     

Subtotal - Housing  $    -  Debt service - Housing  $    - -$     

Subtotal - Non-Housing  $    -  Debt service - Non-Housing  $    - -$     

Total Interim Sources  $    -  Total Debt Service:  $    - -$     

Creekside Community 12-plex

Debt service - Housing  

Funding Source Decision Due Date

Must Pay Debt Svc per 

Indicated Terms

(Housing)

Debt service - Non-Housing

Phone Number

Housing Rate (%) Term 

(years)

For all uncommitted funds listed above, list the date of financing decision, contact name, and phone number.

Contact Name

Source of Funds

Decision Due Date Contact Name Phone NumberFunding Source

For all uncommitted funds listed above, list the date of financing decision, contact name, and phone number.

Term 

(years)

Low-Income Housing Tax Credits:

Sources of Funds 

List all sources of debt and equity in the project, including permanent financing, grants, donations, etc.  Construction and other interim financing should not be included in the first chart, 

but should be listed in the Interim Financing Box below.  In the "Description Code" column, use the list below for the code.

List all Permanent Sources of Project Funding, using one description code per line.

per year

Source of Funds Housing Rate (%)

Federal Home Loan Bank of Des Moines AHP Application Sources: Page 1 of 1

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 90 of 120



Sources of Funds Explanation 

On the Sources of Funds page in the Feasibility Worksheet for FHLB Des Moines, we needed to 
demonstrate that we had the necessary funds committed. Pending funding would not be 
acceptable for disbursement of funds.  We listed a private loan for $600,000 and increased the 
amount of donations to an additional $200,000, instead of the original loan of $800,000.  Because 
of the increase in Debt Service in counting a loan repayment to the Initiative Foundation, we would 
not be able to afford to make payments on a loan of $800,000 also.  We considered the $200,000 to 
be a deferred loan which would become payable once the other loan from the Initiative Foundation 
had been paid. 

At the time of the updated Feasibility Workbook, prepared for the Disbursement of funds, we 
anticipated receiving other funding from pending grants and the Statewide Affordable Housing Aid.  
Also, since the update, our construction costs for the project have increased. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 91 of 120



See the Guide for Applicants for more information on how to categorize costs.

Acquisition Costs Housing Non-Housing Total

Building Acquisition -$      

Land Acquisition 52,571$      52,571$      

Carrying Costs -$      

Legal Fees 300$       300$       

Closing Costs 300$       300$       

Title and Recording 976$       976$       

Total Acquisition Costs 54,147$      -$      54,147$      

Construction/Rehabilitation Costs Housing Non-Housing Total

Construction Costs (Structure) 1,111,658$       -$      1,111,658$       

Rehabilitation Costs (Structure) -$      -$      -$      

On-Site Improvements 362,540$      -$      362,540$      

Off-Site Improvements -$      -$      -$      

Demolition -$      

Contingency 50,071$      50,071$      

Builders Overhead 30,747$      30,747$      

Builders Profit 69,650$      69,650$      

General Requirements 117,101$      117,101$      

Bond Premium -$      

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment -$      

Total Construction/Rehabilitation Costs 1,741,767$       -$      1,741,767$       

Soft Costs Housing Non-Housing Total

Architect 25,427$      25,427$      

Engineering 20,759$      20,759$      

Appraisal -$      

Attorney -$      

Accounting 1,000$      1,000$       

Enviromental Study -$      

Municipality -$      

Permits 54,123$      54,123$      

Market Study -$      

Survey -$      

Marketing Expenses -$      

Relocation -$      

Soft Cost Contingency -$      

Construction Period Insurance 12,000$      12,000$      

Construction Period Property Taxes -$      

Other Soft Costs -$      

Total Soft Costs 113,309$      -$      113,309$      

Construction/Bridge Loan Financing Housing Non-Housing Total

Interest -$      

Origination Fees -$      

Application Fees -$      

Other Fees -$      

Total Construction Financing -$      -$      -$      

Permanent Financing Housing Non-Housing Total

Permanent Loan Origination Fees 1,125$       1,125$       

Bond Related Costs -$      

Application Fees -$      

Other Permanent Financing Fees -$      

Total 1,125$       -$      1,125$       

Other Financing Fees and Expenses Housing Non-Housing Total

Tax Credit Reservation Fees -$      

Application Fees -$      

Other Financing Costs -$      

Total Other Financing Fees and Expenses -$      -$      -$      

Developer Fees Housing Non-Housing Total

Developer Fees -$      

Consultant Fees -$      

Total Developer Fees -$      -$      -$      

Project Reserves Housing Non-Housing Total

Lease-up Reserves -$      

Operating Reserves -$      

Replacement Reserves -$      

Rental Assistance Reserves -$      

Other Reserves -$      

Total Project Reserves -$      -$      -$      

Total Project Costs 1,910,348$       -$      1,910,348$       

Percentage of Total Cost 100.00% 0.00%

Summary of Uses of Funds

Federal Home Loan Bank of Des Moines AHP Application Summary_of_Uses: Page 1 of 1
CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 92 of 120



Housing Development Uses of Funds Summary 

Total Acquisition Costs $ 54,147.00 

Total Construction / Rehabilitation Costs $ 1,741,767.00 

Hard Construction Costs $ 1,474,198.00 

Hard Rehabilitation Costs $ 0.00 

Other Costs $ 267,569.00 

Total Fees $ 0.00 

Total Taxes and Insurance Costs $ 12,000.00 

Total Construction Financing $ 0.00 

Total Permanent Financing $ 1,125.00 

Total Project Reserves $ 0.00 

Total Soft Costs $ 101,309.00 

Total Developer & Consultant Fees $ 0.00 

Total Financing Fees and Expenses $ 0.00 

Total Development Costs $ 1,910,348.00 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 93 of 120



CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 94 of 120



2/7/2025 

Dear HRA Board of Commissioners, 

My Neighbor to Love Coalition submitted an updated application in October 2023 which is now in 
line for review.  We are seeking funding to help us with construction costs of Creekside North, a 
multi-family 12-plex in NW Brainerd. 

In the HTF Guidelines it reads, “CWC HRA encourages projects that address chronic homelessness 
and/or housing for extremely low-income households, or households whose income does not 
exceed 30% AMI.” Our intentional living development is addressing the needs of the homeless who 
have low incomes to extremely low incomes.  

Additionally, the Guidelines go on to say, “Priority will be given to the project with the greatest 
percentage of affordable units.” Instead of the minimal requirement of 20% of the units being 
affordable to households whose income does not exceed 80% of AMI, our project is providing over 
90% of its units to households with incomes less than 50% AMI (with several at <30% AMI). The 
Guidelines also list criteria to be considered, and our project meets all that are listed.   

To pay for this project, we are relying on grants, donations, and loans. We received a grant for 
$600,000 from the Federal Home Loan Bank Des Moines.  Their disbursement occurred once we 
could prove we could come up with the remaining total amount needed before the deadline of 
December 2024. Some of the sources we had listed in the initial application as potential funding 
did not come through and we submitted an updated feasibility workbook with the current plan (we 
are providing a copy of this workbook and Pro Forma). To make up some of the difference, we 
entered into another loan agreement, explained below. 

Project costs are $1,910,378 with recent total construction costs for the 12-plex at $1,810,117.  
This does not include property purchase, pre-development work, landscaping, and appliances.  I 
offered a line of credit with a maximum of $800,000 at 0% interest, intended to be used as needed 
to keep construction going, and to allow time for fundraising (with hopes that the full amount would 
not be needed).  We raised approximately $155,000 through donations and fundraisers. As 
December was quickly approaching, and we were at risk of losing our $600,000 grant funding, the 
Initiative Foundation was willing to enter into a loan agreement for $225,000.  We assured them that 
our intention was to continue to try to raise funds from other sources so we would not have to 
initiate the loan. We anticipated receiving $104,000 from Statewide Affordable Housing Aid and 
funding from other pending grants – which did not come through. 

The remaining construction invoice total including retainage is $489,036, plus we need $27,869 for 
appliances, and approximately $35,000 for irrigation and landscaping. We have $100,000 in a CD to 
use toward construction costs and $27,869 in our general fund to cover appliances. Our 
commitment is to keep rental costs as low as possible so we would prefer not to have to accept the 
loan offered by the Initiative Foundation.  If we had to make loan payments on both loans, we would 
be operating at a loss.  We also prefer not to use more of the line of credit so any funding remaining 
can go toward other projects. We still owe $98,000 for our 4-plex project. 

While our application request is for a greater amount, we’d be grateful for a loan of $425,000 to 
$450,000. This would keep us “in the black” and allow us time to continue to raise funds.  We do 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 95 of 120



have enough funds in our general account to cover appliances if needed, though having a buffer 
would be good. Our intention would not be to wait 20 years to pay the loan off and would like to be 
out of debt as soon as we are able. 

We welcome any questions and appreciate your consideration. 

Thank you, 

 

Vicky Kinney 

My Neighbor to Love Coalition 

 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 96 of 120



Information on compliance with federal and state accessibility standards: 

This project is new construction and will follow all the standards and requirements set forth in the ADA 

Standards for Accessible Design.  Each housing unit will have doorway openings that are between 32” 

and 36” wide (with most if not all, being 36” wide).  At least 20% of the units will be handicap accessible 

with ramps into the home and bathrooms designed with required support bars and accessible 

shower/bath stalls. 

The community center also will be built according to the same standards with hallways wider than the 

required width and bathrooms which are handicap accessible.  Braille signage will be included once 

needed.  Parking and ramps into the building will also be designed according to the regulations. 

Residents will not be discriminated against on the basis of race, color, sex (including sexual orientation 

and gender identity), disability, religion, familial status, national origin and citizenship status. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 97 of 120



From: vickyjokinney@yahoo.com
To: Eric Charpentier
Subject: More informaton
Date: Thursday, March 13, 2025 12:21:29 PM
Attachments: Simplified Rental Agreement - Updated 9_27_24.pdf

HI Eric,
W recently hired a property manager, started officially on March 1,2025. We will pay him $3360 monthly. 
$500 of that expense comes out of rental income from Creekside North (12-plex) and $200 from
Creekside Quad (4-plex).  For the current year, we have an agreement with Nor-Son to do construction
cleaning and install towels bars, etc.  Our property manager will be doing that work and the $7000 will be
directed to him.  He also is working as a volunteer recruiter, and we have received grant funding to pay
for those hours worked.  In addition, we have received funding from Sourcewell to cover the remaining
wages for 2025.

Once the next two buildings are completed, additional property management wages will be included from
rental income, and we intend to increase the amount pulled from rental income (being we won't have
loans to cover for that phase).

Currently, 20% of his wages comes from rental income (between both the 12-plex and 4-plex), 20%
comes from construction savings, and 60% comes from grant funding.

Also, attached is a copy of our rental agreement.

Please let me know if you have any other questions or need further information.

Vicky

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 98 of 120

mailto:vickyjokinney@yahoo.com
mailto:eric@brainerdhra.org



Creekside Community Rental Agreement 
 


Creekside Community is an intentional living development of My Neighbor to Love Coalition.  
Residents who live here agree to be a good neighbor, respect each other and each other’s property, 
and work toward living with purpose and improving their lives. 
 
This paper is your rental agreement. It tells you the rules for living in your new home. Read it 
carefully and sign it to show you understand and agree to everything.   
 
This agreement is between My Neighbor to Love Coalition, who will be referred to as “Landlord” and 
____________________________________, who will be referred to as “Tenant”.  This agreement is made 
on __________________________, 20___. 
 
Address is: ________________________________________________________________  Unit#___________.  
 
I.  How Long You Can Stay.  You can live here for as long as you want if you follow this agreement, 
but you need to give us 30 days' notice in writing if you decide to move out.  This means you must 
tell us in writing at least 30 days before you want to leave.  The terms of this agreement are month-
to-month and automatically renew unless you give notice you are moving, or we give notice of non-
renewal.  This agreement is beginning on ___________________________________________________. 
 
II.  Paying Your Rent.  Your rent is $_________________ a month and it's due on the 1st day of every 
month.  You can pay your rent by check or money order by mail to MNTLC, P.O. Box 581, Nisswa, MN 
56468 or at the Creekside Center management office.  If you have trouble paying your rent, please 
talk to us as soon as possible. Late fees, if any, will not start until after the 5th of the month. 
 
III.  Security Deposit.  You need to give us a $200 security deposit. This money is to cover any 
damage you might cause to the housing unit while you're living here.  When you move out, we'll give 
you your deposit back, minus any money we need to use to fix any damage.  We'll also give you 
interest on your deposit based on state laws. If some of your deposit is not returned, we will give 
you a written statement explaining why within 3 weeks.  You must provide an address or delivery 
instructions to give this to you. 
 
IV.  Who Can Live Here.  Only you and your family can live in this house.  Your family includes 
yourself and _________________________, _______________________, and _______________________. 
You can't have anyone else living here without our permission.  You can have guests stay overnight 
for up to 3 nights each month with prior permission.  If you want your guests to stay longer, you need 
to ask us first.  You are responsible for your guests' behavior and for any damage they might cause.  
This unit is only for a place to live and cannot be used for a business or any other purpose. 
 
V.  Condition of Housing Unit.  You've looked at the housing unit and you agree that it's in good 
condition.  It's clean, safe, and ready for you to move in. 
 


1 of 5 







VI.  Can You Share or Rent Out the Housing Unit?  You can't rent out any part of the housing unit or 
let someone else live here without our permission.   
 
VII.  Making Changes to the Housing Unit. You can't make any changes to the housing unit without 
our permission.  This means you can't paint or make any other changes without getting our 
permission first.  If you do make any changes, they become our property when you move out.  If any 
changes made cause damage, repairs will be deducted from your deposit. 
 
VIII.  What Happens if We Can't Give You the Housing Unit on Time?  If we can't give you the 
housing unit on the date you're supposed to move in, we'll let you know as soon as possible.  We'll 
try to get you into the house within 30 days.  If we can't get you in within 30 days, through no fault of 
our own, you can cancel the agreement, and you won't have to pay any rent. 
 
IX.  Dangerous Things. You can't keep anything dangerous or flammable in the housing unit, like 
gasoline or fireworks, or any other dangerous material or products. Burning candles, incense, or 
anything else that is lit with a flame/fire is not allowed. This is to keep everyone safe. 
 
  X. Utilities.  You are responsible for paying for the electricity and gas you need at your home.  The 
Landlord will pay for water/sewer and garbage service.  The Resident Handbook will tell you who to 
contact for these services, or you can ask for this information. 
 
XI.  Smoking Rules.  Smoking or vaping is not allowed in any housing units or interior common 
areas.  Smoking outdoors must be done at least 15 feet away from any doors or windows of the 
housing units or buildings on the property.  Breaking this rule is grounds for immediate termination 
of this rental agreement. Smoking marijuana is not allowed anywhere on the property. 
  
XII.  Substance Use.  Illegal drugs or any other illegal substances are not allowed in the housing 
units, common areas, or anywhere on the property.  Public drunkenness or intoxication is also not 
allowed.  To support neighbors in recovery, public drinking of alcohol outdoors and in common 
areas indoors is not allowed.  Breaking these rules is grounds for ending the rental agreement. 
 
XIII. Keeping Your Home and Property in Good Shape. You need to keep your home clean and in 
good condition.  You also need to make sure you don’t throw any garbage or waste anywhere on the 
property, except in designated areas. If anything needs repairing, contact us to let us know. Here 
are some specific things you need to do: 
 
(a) Don't block the hallways, stairs, or entrances. These areas are for getting in and out of the 
building. 
(b) Keep the windows, doors, and locks clean and in good working order. 
(c) Don't cover up the windows or doors. 
(d) Don't leave windows or doors open during bad weather. 
(e) Don't put locks or hooks on doors or windows without permission from the landlord. 
(f) Keep the air conditioner filters clean. 
 2 of 5 







 
(g) Keep the sinks, toilets, and other plumbing working properly.  Don't put trash or other things 
down the drains.  You are responsible for any damage caused by misuse of the plumbing. (h) Be 
respectful of your neighbors. Keep the noise down so as not to bother other people. 
(i) Throw away your trash in the designated areas. Don't leave trash outside the building or in any 
common areas. 
(j) Follow the rules in the Resident Handbook. These rules are important for everyone living in the 
community. 
(k) Keep your home neat and tidy.  Put away food properly and clean up spills right away. 
(l) Don't disconnect or alter the smoke detector. 
 
If you don't follow these rules, the landlord will give you a warning. If you don't fix the problem or you 
keep breaking the rule, the landlord will charge you a fine or not let you renew your lease. 
 
XIV.  What Happens if Your Home is Damaged.  If your housing unit is damaged by something like 
a fire, storm, or earthquake that you didn't cause, your lease will end. You will have to pay rent up to 
the date of the damage, and the landlord will refund any rent you paid after that date.  
 
If only part of your housing unit is damaged, the landlord can either fix it or end your lease. If the 
landlord fixes it, your rent will be lowered until the repairs are done. 
 
XV.  The Landlord Can Inspect Your Home.  The landlord has the right to come into your home at 
reasonable times to check on things and make repairs. They can also remove anything that doesn't 
follow the rules of your lease or the community. 
 
XVI.  Your Lease is Subordinate to the Landlord's Mortgages.  This means that if the landlord has 
a mortgage on the property, your lease is less important than the mortgage. 
 
XVII.  Staying After Your Lease Ends.  If you stay in your home after your lease ends and the 
landlord allows it, you will automatically have a month-to-month lease. This lease will have the 
same rules as your original lease. 
 
XVIII.  Moving Out.  When your lease ends, you need to leave the home in good condition, except for 
normal wear and tear. 
 
XIX.  Pets.  You need to get permission from the landlord before bringing a pet into your home. You 
will also need to pay a $100 pet deposit if the pet is not a service or emotional support animal. You 
are responsible for taking good care of your pet and following all the rules about pets.  You need to 
show proof that they have been neutered or spayed and have had all vaccinations required by law.  
Pets are required to be on a leash when outside.  You are responsible for cleaning up any messes 
your pet makes immediately.  Litter boxes need to be cleaned daily to reduce odors.  Fines may be 
given for not complying. 
 
 3 of 5 







XX.  Quiet Enjoyment.  As long as you pay your rent and follow the rules, you have the right to live in 
your home peacefully. 
 
XXI.  Indemnification.  You are responsible for any injuries or damages that happen to you, your 
family, guests, or anyone else in your home or in common areas. You agree not to hold the landlord 
responsible and will protect the landlord from any claims related to these injuries or damages. 
 
XXII.  Breaking the Rules.  If you break the rules of your lease, the landlord has the option of giving 
you a warning. If you don't fix the problem within seven days or if the problem continues to recur, 
the landlord may fine you or end your lease. If you don't pay your rent on time, the landlord can also 
end your lease and may start the eviction process. 
 
XXIII.  Abandoning Your Housing Unit.  If you leave your home without telling the landlord, the 
landlord can take possession of your home. The landlord can also rent out your home and charge 
you for any difference between the rent you were supposed to pay and the rent the new tenant pays. 
The landlord can also throw away any belongings you leave behind.  If there is a cost for removing 
your belongings, you will be held responsible for paying those costs. 
 
XXIV.  Parking.  Vehicles can only be parked in the parking lot in the designated spots.  Any vehicles 
that are no longer running or are unrepairable must be removed from the property.  Bicycles can be 
parked in the provided bike racks.  Bicycles are not allowed to be left outside your door or in any 
lawn areas or planting beds. 
 
XXV.  Legal Fees.  If the landlord has to hire a lawyer to enforce the rules of your lease, or to collect 
rent, or gain possession of the property, you will have to pay the lawyer's fees. 
 
XXVI.  Recording Your Lease.  You can't record your lease on the public records of any public office. 
If you do, the landlord can end your lease. 
 
XXVII.  Minnesota Law.  Your lease is governed by the laws of the state of Minnesota. 
  
XXVIII.  Changes to the Lease.  If any part of your lease is invalid, the rest of the lease will still be 
valid. 
 
XXIX.  Who the Lease Applies To.  The rules of your lease apply to you, your family, and anyone else 
who lives in your home. 
 
XXX.  Headings.  The headings in this lease are just for easy reference and don't change the 
meaning of the lease. 
 
XXXI.  Words.  The words in this lease can refer to both men and women, and both singular and 
plural. 
 


4 of 5 







XXXII.  Waivers.  If the landlord lets (or overlooks when) you break a rule or is unaware that you 
broke a rule, that doesn't mean you can keep breaking that rule. 
 
XXXIII.  Changing the Lease.  This lease will not be changed unless there is a new agreement, and 
everyone signs it.  Landlord has the right to make changes or updates in the lease and you have the 
option of signing the new lease and continuing with your month-to month rental agreement. 
 
 
XXXIV.  Notices.  If the landlord needs to send you a notice required under this lease and under 
state law, they can send it by certified mail. You also can send notices to the landlord by certified 
mail.  Notices not required to be certified can also be sent by regular mail. Notices can be sent to 
the landlord at the following address:  MNTLC, P.O. Box 581, Nisswa, MN 56468.  Include the 
address where you would like notices sent (this can be updated as needed): 
_________________________________________________________________________________________  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
XXXV. Potential Additional Requirements.  If a tenant breaks a rule which could result in the 
landlord not renewing the lease, the landlord has the option to offer a tenant an opportunity to 
follow additional requirements for the lease to continue.  An example could be that for late 
payments, the landlord may require that the tenant take a budgeting class or work with a volunteer 
on money management. 
 
XXXVI. Additional Provisions; Disclosures.  __________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Landlord Signature:  ________________________________________ Date: __________________________ 


Printed Name:  ______________________________________________ 


 


Tenant Signature:  ___________________________________________ Date: __________________________ 


Printed Name:  ______________________________________________ 


 


Tenant Signature: ___________________________________________ Date: __________________________ 


Printed Name: ______________________________________________ 


5 of 5 







Document No.: [OA43O5 RBSTRRCT

l2/1A/2@24 10:43 A!'l Total Pages: 4
Fees/Taxes In the Amount of: $46.@@

GRRY GRIFFIN
CROU UING, IlINNESOTA
County Re6order
Deputy: sarahh

Documentpreparedby: VickyKinney, V,0, Ba/ 661 , N,=SCUa, MU fQ+bg

AGREEMENT FOR COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS

Effective Date: 1 llll2024

THIS AGREEMENT FOR COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS, is between Bremer
Bank (the "Member"), My Neighbor to Love Coalition (the "Owner") and My Neighbor to Love
Coalition (the "Sponsor"). The Member, Owner and Sponsor are jointly referred to herein as the
"Parties" and individually as the ooParty".

WHEREAS, the Parties and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Des Moines (the "Bank")
have executed an Affordable Housing Program Agreement For Rental Project (Direct Subsidy)
(herein after the "AHP Agreement")

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and for other valuable
consideration the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

l. Income ond rent commitmenfs. The Project's rental units, or applicable portion thereof, must
remain occupied by and affordable for households with incomes at or below the levels
committed to be served in the approved Affordable Housing Program application (the "AHP
Application") for 15 years from the date the Project is completed (the ooRetention Period");

2. Notice. The Bank and the Member shall be given notice of any sale, transfer, assignment of
title or deed, or refinancing of the Project by the project owner occurring prior to the end of the
Retention Period;

3. Repayment of subsidy; exceptions. Inthe case of a sale, transfer, assignment of title or deed,
or refinancing of the Project by the project owner prior to the end of the Retention Period, the
full amount of the AHP subsidy received by the project owner shall be repaid to the Bank, unless
one of the following exceptions applies:

I. The Project continues to be subject to a deed restriction or other legally enforceable
retention agreement or mechanism incorporating the income-eligibility and affordability
restrictions committed to in the approved AHP Application for the duration of the AHP
ll-year Retention Period; or

II. If authorized by the Bank, in its discretion, the households are relocated, due to the
exercise of eminent domain, or for the expansion of housing or services, to another
property that is made subject to a deed restriction or other legally enforceable retention
agreement or mechanism incorporating the income-eligibility and affordability

Rerriserl l--l-)fi)O .l

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 99 of 120



restrictions committed to in the approved AHP Application for the remainder of the AHP

15-year retention period; and

4. Termination of income and rent restrictions. The income-eligibility and affordability
restrictions applicable to the Project shall terminate aftet any foreclosure.

5. All of the covenants herein shall run with the real estate described in Attachment A hereto

and the Project thereon, and be binding upon the Owner and Sponsor and their respective

successors or assigns, for the Retention Period.

6. If any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity,
legality and enforceability of the remaining portions shall not in any way be affected or impaired.

7. Allof the rights and obligations set forth herein and in the AHP Agreement shall be binding

upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns

during the Retention Period.

8. The Owner shall record this Retention Agreement in the appropriate office(s)/jurisdiction(s)

which will enhance the likelihood that the Bank and Member will receive the notice as called for

herein.

9. This Agreement and the covenants and restrictions contained herein shall be deemed

automatically released, discharged and terminated upon the earlier to occur of (i) the expiration

of the Retention Period, (ii) the date on which the direct subsidy is repaid to the Bank under

Section 3 above, or (iii) any foreclosure on the Project under Section 4 above. The Owner, or its

successors or assigns, shall be responsible for the completion and recording of any and all

documentation necessary to effect any release of this Agreement in connection with the sale,

refinancing or foreclosure of the Project during the Retention Period. The recording of a release

shall not be necessary, however, in connection with the expiration of the Retention Period.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement for Covenants

and Restrictions to be executed by their duly authorized officers, all as of the effective date first

above written.

Bremer Bank, National Association
Brent Heller

R+&
[Member's Signature Block]

I +/>/aoa{

[Acknowredgmenr] J&*'fi an*'n"*-- t al al *o Lq

HEIDILNDERSON
NOTARY PUBTIC' MINNESOH

uvior*io* r'P*" ":':::y

Revised l-l-2020

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 100 of 120



[Owner's Signature Block] %r{/ ru@

[Acknowledgment] \/\C!_y E_inwe1 As

Louz Lu^li 1-ro^

fSponsor's Signature Block] t'tf4Q 
fu-y

fAcknowledgment] V icbq pr^^rr,1 ,ML^b4 d M..a Nu{wc tD

Low- Corttt-{ro^ tLl\olLcLq

Please insert above a separate signature block and acknowledgment for the Member, Owner and Sponsor.

wwu"tb-r cfi My Alr-\Vf,tLo. ta
ovr ll/to luL4

ovs

0tA

Revised l-1-2020

BAII.EYHUGHES
CROWWNO CO., MN
ronnret omriEn'

ily Trrnr b ln&tcrminec

BAITEYHUGHES
cRowwNcco.,MN
iOTARIAI-OFFICER

My lcrn is lndacrminrtc

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 101 of 120



ATTACHMENT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

C ," e i< s t'c/<

Lot I

B lac /<- (

&* rrt a*,-A1t l)eriloV ntd.afr

Revised 1-1-2020
CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 102 of 120



CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 103 of 120



CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 104 of 120



To: CWC HRA Board Members 
From: Eric Charpentier, Executive Director 
Date: April 8th, 2025 
Re: Housing Trust Fund Review 

HTF Statute and HTF Ordinance  
At our March 11th board meeting there was a discussion surrounding our housing trust fund and having 
some information sessions about the fund, how it was started and what we have available from our 
programming.  At this meeting I thought we would start with the state statute that allowed local 
housing trust funds to be created. I have also included the ordinance that was approved by the County 
Commissioners that allowed the creation and administration of the housing trust fund locally.  
Attached are both documents for the board’s review. (Attachment 6a & 6b) This will help lay the 
groundwork what programs we currently have and are administering.      

Action Requested:  For discussion purposes only.  

Attachment 6

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 105 of 120



This page intentionally left blank. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 106 of 120



462C.16 HOUSING TRUST FUNDS FOR LOCAL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT.​

Subdivision 1. Definitions. (a) For the purposes of this section, the following terms have the meanings​
given to them.​

(b) "Commissioner" means the commissioner of the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency.​

(c) "Fund" means a local housing trust fund or a regional housing trust fund.​

(d) "Local government" means any statutory or home rule charter city or a county.​

(e) "Local housing trust fund" means a fund established by a local government with one or more dedicated​
sources of public revenue for housing.​

(f) "Regional housing trust fund" means a fund established and administered under a joint powers​
agreement entered into by two or more local governments with one or more dedicated sources of public​
revenue for housing.​

Subd. 2. Creation and administration. (a) A local government may establish a local housing trust fund​
by ordinance or participate in a joint powers agreement to establish a regional housing trust fund.​

(b) A local or regional housing trust fund may be, but is not required to be, administered through a​
nonprofit organization. If administered through a nonprofit organization, that organization shall encourage​
private charitable donations to the fund.​

Subd. 3. Authorized expenditures. Money in a local or regional housing trust fund may be used only​
to:​

(1) pay for administrative expenses, but not more than ten percent of the balance of the fund may be​
spent on administration;​

(2) make grants, loans, and loan guarantees for the development, rehabilitation, or financing of housing;​

(3) match other funds from federal, state, or private resources for housing projects; or​

(4) provide down payment assistance, rental assistance, and home buyer counseling services.​

Subd. 4. Funding. (a) A local government may finance its local or regional housing trust fund with any​
money available to the local government, unless expressly prohibited by state law. Sources of these funds​
include, but are not limited to:​

(1) donations;​

(2) bond proceeds;​

(3) grants and loans from a state, federal, or private source;​

(4) appropriations by a local government to the fund;​

(5) investment earnings of the fund; and​

(6) housing and redevelopment authority levies.​

(b) The local government may alter a source of funding for the local or regional housing trust fund, but​
only if, once altered, sufficient funds will exist to cover the projected debts or expenditures authorized by​
the fund in its budget.​

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota​
Revisor of Statutes​

462C.16​MINNESOTA STATUTES 2024​1​

Attachment 6a

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 107 of 120



Subd. 5. Reports. A local or regional housing trust fund established under this section must report​
annually to the local government that created the fund. The local government or governments must post this​
report on its public website.​

Subd. 6. Effect of legislation on existing local or regional housing trust funds. A local or regional​
housing trust fund existing on July 1, 2017, is not required to alter the existing terms of its governing​
documents or take any additional authorizing actions required by subdivision 2.​

History: 2017 c 94 art 11 s 8​

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota​
Revisor of Statutes​

2​MINNESOTA STATUTES 2024​462C.16​

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 108 of 120



DATE: February 25, 2020 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Crow Wing County, Minnesota 

Resolution 2020-10 
OFFERED BY COMMISSIONERS: Barrows and Brekken 
AYES: Koering, Brekken, Barrows, Franzen, Houge 

HOUSING TRUST FUND ORDINANCE 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Minnesota Statute 375.51, a Public Hearing was held on February 25, 

2020, to consider approval of a Housing Trust Fund Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Crow Wing County, Minnesota, 

adopts the attached Ordinance Establishing a Housing Trust Fund in Crow Wing County (Ordinance No. 

2001 ), effective upon publication. 

STATEOFMINNESOTA ) 
COUNTY OF CROW WING) ss

Document No.: 929743 ABSTRACT 

03/04/2020 02:34 PM Total Pages: 5 

Fees/Taxes In the Amount of $0.00 

GARY GRIFFIN 
CROW WING, MINNESOTA 
County Recorder 
Deputy· geria 

I, Timothy J. Houle, County Administrator, Crow Wing County, Minnesota, hereby certify that I have compared the foregoing copy of the 
resolution of the county board of said county with the original record thereof on file in the Administration Office, Crow Wing County, 
Minnesota, as stated in the minutes of the proceedings of said board at a meeting duly held on February 25, 2020, and that the same is a 
true and correct copy of said original record and of the whole thereof, and that said resolution was duly passed by said board at said 
meeting. 

Md w��
nd 7! t

�
is 4'" �

Attachment 6b

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 109 of 120



ORDINANCE NO. 2001 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A HOUSING TRUST FUND 

IN CROW WING COUNTY 

Section 1: GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Authority. This Ordinance is adopted pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 462C. l 6. 

1.2 Purpose. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 462C.16, there is hereby created and 

established for the County of Crow Wing a fund to be known and denominated as the Crow 

Wing County Housing Trust Fund. The Trust Fund shall be a permanent source of funding and a 

continually renewable source of revenue to meet, in part, the housing needs of Moderate, Low 

Income and Very Low Income households of the County. The Trust Fund shall provide loans 

and grants to property owners, homeowners, local units of government, for-profit housing 

developers, and non-profit housing developers for the acquisition, capital and soft costs 

necessary for the creation of new Affordable and Workforce Housing (both rental and owner­

occupied). Projects funded by the Trust Fund shall be dispersed throughout the County. 

Section 2: DEFINITIONS

2.1 "Affordable" means a housing unit that has an Affordable Housing Cost 

2.2 "Affordable Housing Cost" means an amount satisfied by: 

2.2.1 For owner-occupied housing, a housing payment inclusive ofloan principal, loan interest, 

property taxes, property and mortgage insurance, and homeowners association dues 

which allows a moderate, low income or very low income household to purchase a home 

while paying no more than thirty percent (30%) of their gross household income. 

2.2.2 For rental or cooperative housing, a housing payment, inclusive of a reasonable 

allowance for heating, which allow a moderate, low income or very low income 

household to rent a unit while paying no more than thirty percent (30%) of their gross 

household income 

2.3 "Area Median Income" means the income guidelines established and published annually by 

the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

2.4 "Assisted Unit" means a housing unit that is Affordable because of assistance from the Trust 

Fund. 

2.5 "Grants Supervisor" means the Crow Wing County HRA Executive Director, or his or her 

designee. 

2.6 "HRA" means the Housing and Redevelopment Authority in and for the County of Crow 

Wing. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 110 of 120



2.7 "Low Income" means gross household income that is at or below eighty percent (80%) of 

Area Median Income, but more than fifty percent (50%) of Area Median Income. 

2.8 "Moderate Income" means gross household income that is at or below 115 percent (115%) 

of Area Median Income, but more than eighty percent (80%) of Area Median Income. 

2.9 "Permanent Source of Funding" means once funds are allocated to the Trust those funds can 

only be expended for purposes outlined in section (4) of this document. 

2.10 "Project" may mean a single family house (attached or detached) or a multifamily 

property, either as owner-occupied property or rental property. 

2.11 "Recipient" means any homeowner, for-profit, non-profit or local unit of government 

housing developer that receives funds in the form of a loan or a grant from the Trust Fund 

Account. A Recipient may be an individual, partnership, local unit of government, joint venture, 

limited liability company or partnership, association or corporation. 

2.12 "Trust Fund" means the Crow Wing County Housing Trust Fund. 

2.13 "Very Low Income" means gross household income that is at or below fifty percent ( 50%) 

of Area Median Income. 

2.14 "Workforce Housing" means owner-occupied or rental housing units that are provided to 

households with at least one member per unit who is gainfully employed at the time of entry into 

the unit. 

Section 3: TRUST FUND ACCOUNT; SOURCE OF TRUST FUNDS 

3.1 A. There is also hereby established a Crow Wing County Trust Fund Account, to be 

maintained by the HRA. All funds received by the HRA on behalf of the Trust Fund shall be 

deposited in the Trust Fund Account. Principal and interest from loan repayments, and all other 

income from Trust Fund activities, shall be deposited in the Trust Fund Account. All interest 

earnings from the Trust Fund Account shall be reinvested and dedicated to the Trust Fund 

Account. 

3.2 The Trust Fund shall consist of funds derived from the following, but not limited to: 

3.2.1 Private cash contributions designated for the Trust Fund; 

3.2.2 Payments in lieu of participation in current or future Affordable housing programs; 

3.2.3 Grants or loans from the federal or state government; 

3.2.4 Principal and interest from Trust Fund loan repayments and all other income from Trust 

Fund activities. 

3.2.5 Budgeted payments made by the HRA's tax levy fund as approved by County Board. 

3.2.6 Employer based funds and matches. 

3.2.7 Other sources to be considered; local or regional utility companies, specific county 

departments, specific county program funds (revolving loan fund). 

3.2.8 Application Fees - Projects applying for funds. 

3.3 The Trust Fund may consist of funds derived from any other source, including but not 

limited to the following: 

3.3.1 Tax Increment returned to the County after decertification of a TIF district. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 111 of 120



3.3.2 Any other appropriations as determined from time to time by action of the HRA or 

County Board. 

Section 4: TRUST FUND DISTRIBUTIONS

4.1 The Trust Fund is to function as a resource to fund loans and grants in strict accordance with 

this Section. The Trust Fund shall be administered by the Grant Supervisor of the HRA. No 

disbursements over $50,000 may be made from the Trust Fund Account without the prior 

approval of the HRA' s Board of Commissioners. 

4.2 Disbursements from the Trust Fund Account shall be made as loans or grants to assist 

Recipients in the creation of Assisted Units and administrative fees not to exceed 10 percent. 

Recipients may use the funds to pay for: capital costs, including but not limited to the actual 

costs of rehabilitating or constructing Assisted Units; preserving Affordable units; demolishing 

or converting existing non-residential buildings to create new Assisted Units; real property 

acquisition costs; and professional service costs, including but not limited to, those costs incurred 

for architectural, engineering, planning and legal services which are attributable to the creation 

of Assisted Units. 

4.3 All projects exceeding $50,000 considered for funding will be reviewed by the HRA staff, 

and the Executive Director shall submit staff comments and recommendations to the HRA's 

Board of Commissioners, prior to HRA action. 

4.4 The HRA shall within thirty (30) days following the close of each fiscal year prepare and 

submit an annual report to the County on the activities undertaken with funds from the Trust 

Fund. The report shall specify the number and types of units assisted, the amount loaned per 

Assisted Unit, the amount of state, federal and private funds leveraged, the geographic 

distribution of Assisted Units and a summary of statistical data relative to the incomes of assisted 

households, including their monthly rent or mortgage payments, and the sales prices of owner­

occupied Assisted Units. 

Section 5: TERM OF AFFORDABILITY

5.1 The minimum term of affordability for an Assisted Unit shall be fifteen (15) years. The HRA 

shall give preference to those projects that ensure that the Assisted Units remain Affordable for 

the longest period possible. 

5.2 Assisted Units shall be deed-restricted to ensure long term affordability. 

5.3 The HRA will enter into loan agreements with the Recipients of the Trust Fund monies. 

Each loan agreement will clearly state the conditions and requirements for the Recipient's use of 

Trust Fund monies, including the term of compliance, transfer or sale requirements and other 

requirements as specified. 

5.4 In those cases where an Assisted Unit is sold or transferred prior to the expiration of the 

agreed-upon term, or where an Assisted Unit is no longer Affordable, the initial Recipient of 

assistance from the Trust Fund shall be obligated to repay to the Trust Fund the original amount 

of the loan or grant. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 112 of 120



5.5 The HRA shall enforce all debt and lien instruments to the fullest extent of the law. The 

HRA may recommend debt settlement offers, if it is determined to be in the best interest of the 

Trust Fund. 

Section 6: SEVERABILITY

6.1 If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof is held invalid, said invalidity 

does not affect other provisions or applications of the Ordinance which can be given effect 

without the invalid provision or application and for this purpose, the provisions of the Ordinance 

are severable. 

Section 7: EFFECTIVE DATE

7 .1 This Ordinance shall be in effect from and after the date of its passage by the Crow Wing 

County Board of Commissioners and publication according to Minnesota Statutes. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 113 of 120



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 114 of 120



To: CWC HRA Board Members 
From: Eric Charpentier, Executive Director 
Date: April 8th, 2025 
Re: Executive Director Report 

Housing Development Financial Professional Training 
Throughout the week of April 7th – 11th I will be attending the first in a three-part series of classes to 
become certified as a housing development financial professional through a series that is administered 
through Grow America (formerly NDC).  This is a curriculum that includes housing development, housing 
finance and overall, a general education on successfully putting the pieces together to bring housing 
development to a community.  I am excited to be starting this classwork and will keep the board 
updated on my progress.   

Action Requested:  For discussion purposes only.  

Attachment 7

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 115 of 120



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 116 of 120



To: CWC HRA Board Members 

From: Eric Charpentier, Executive Director 

Date: April 8th, 2025 

Re: Housing Trust Fund Report 

Housing Trust Fund Education 
At the March 11th board meeting there was discussion surrounding reviewing the housing trust fund, its 
programs and the guidelines that have been approved by the board as we have had some new members 
to our board recently.  As you heard previously in this meeting, we have started that process by 
reviewing the state statute and the local ordinance allowing the creation of the fund. In the upcoming 
months staff will be presenting the different programs that we currently offer to provide deeper insight 
and also allow for board input on these programs.  Staff is continually reviewing our guidelines as well 
and we anticipate that throughout the next few meetings that between staff recommendations and 
feedback from the commissioners, that we will have a request to update our guidelines to ensure that 
they are reflective of any adjustments that the board would like to make.   

Action Requested: No action needed, for informational purposes only.  

Attachment 8

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 117 of 120



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 118 of 120



To: Crow Wing County HRA Board Members 
From: John Schommer, Rehab & Maintenance Director 
Date: April 2, 2025 
Re: Programs Report 

Brainerd Oaks/Serene Pines/Dalmar Estates 

Development Total # Sold to Developer # Sold to End Buyer For Sale In Construction 

Brainerd Oaks 81* 80 72 0 4 

Serene Pines 24** 22 22 0 0 

Dalmar Estates 7 7 6 0 1 
* Originally 83 lots, 2 have been merged/combined into a single parcel
**Originally 23 lots, 1 was added

Action Requested:  None, discussion items. 

Attachment 9

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 119 of 120



This page intentionally left blank. 

CWC HRA Board Meeting Packet 04.08.25 Page 120 of 120


	0. Agenda 4-8-25 Draft 2
	1. Minutes - Board Meeting 03-11-25
	2. Complete Finance Section
	Board Memo - Finance Rpt
	+Blank Intentionally
	2025 HTF Loans with Projection
	+Blank Intentionally
	Monthly_Processing_20250402131334
	2025 Payments
	+Blank Intentionally

	3. CWC HRA notice of public hearing on conveyance to Level Contracting_ LLC (Outlots E & F)
	4. Outlots E&F Memo
	4a. Fourth Amendment to Master PDA (to add Outlots E  F)
	SCHEDULE A

	4b. CWC HRA Level Contracting PURCHASE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (Outlots E  F)-4933-9308-8303-v2
	EXHIBIT C

	4c. Grant Agreement btw Brainerd HRA, CWC HRA, and Level Contracting (Outlots E and F)
	GRANT AGREEMENT
	Date: ________________, 20__

	4d. CWC HRA reso approving 4th Amendment, Sale of Outlots E F, PDA, and Grant Agr-4913-2778-6543-v2
	Section 1. Recitals.
	1.01. The Authority currently administers its Redevelopment Project No. 1 (the “Project”), pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.001 to 469.047 (the “HRA Act”), as amended, the boundaries of which are coterminous with the geographic boundaries ...
	1.02. In connection with the Project, the Authority created a Redevelopment Plan for the Project (the “Redevelopment Plan”) providing for certain redevelopment activities to take place in the City of Brainerd, Minnesota (the “City”) within the Project...
	1.03. The Authority and Paxmar-Brainerd, LLC (the “Prior Redeveloper”) executed a Master Purchase and Redevelopment Contract, dated as of September 13, 2016 (the “Master PDA”), as amended by a First Amendment to Master Purchase and Redevelopment Contr...
	1.04. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.192, as amended, a housing and redevelopment authority may make a loan to a business, a for-profit or nonprofit organization, or an individual for any purpose that the housing and redevelopment authori...
	1.05. Pursuant to Section 469.041(6) of the HRA Act, the Authority may do any and all things necessary or convenient to aid and cooperate in the planning, undertaking, construction, or operation of projects, including a redevelopment project, which te...
	1.06. The Housing and Redevelopment Authority in and for the City of Brainerd, Minnesota (the “Brainerd HRA”) currently owns two parcels, described as Outlot E and Outlot F, Brainerd Oaks in the County of Crow Wing, Minnesota (together, “Outlots E and...
	1.07. The Authority desires to add Outlots E and F, as part of the Property subject to the Contract pursuant to a Fourth Amendment Master Purchase and Redevelopment Contract, by and between the Authority and the Redeveloper (the “Fourth Amendment to C...
	1.08. On the date hereof, the Board of the Authority conducted a duly noticed public hearing on the sale of the Parcel to the Redeveloper pursuant to the Fourth Amendment to Contract, in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.029, subdivision...
	1.09. The Authority and the Redeveloper propose to enter into a Purchase and Redevelopment Agreement (the “2025A Agreement”), the form of which has been presented to the Board, in accordance with and conforming to the Contract, as amended by the Fourt...
	1.010. In connection with the Redeveloper Project, the Authority and the Brainerd HRA have committed up to $150,000 and $100,000, respectively, of available funds to reimburse the Redeveloper for the costs of constructing certain roadway and other inf...


	5. Housing Trust Fund Loan Request Memo - New Development Financing -  4-8-25
	5a. Housing Trust Fund Loan Request Supporting Documentation
	2 MNTLC One Sheet - 4-2-25
	2a 2025 CWC HRA HTF Application - New Devlopment Redevelopment Financing (1)
	3 2024-02-29 My Neighbor to Love- 12-plex (1)
	Sheets
	A100 - M.L. - FLOOR PLAN
	A110 - U.L. - FLOOR PLAN
	A300 - BUILDING ELEVATIONS


	3a Parcel View of Creekside Community
	4 CID_2023_Housing Pro Forma_Rental_Feasibility_Workbook (Disbursement)
	5 CID_2023_Project Worksheet_Rental_Feasibility_Workbook (Disbursement)
	6 CID_2023_Rental_Feasibility_Workbook (Disbursement)
	7 CID_2023_Sources_Rental_Feasibility_Workbook (Disbursement)
	7a Sources of Funds Explanation
	8 CID_2023_Summary of Uses_Rental_Feasibility_Workbook (Disbursement)
	8a Updated Housing Development Uses of Funds Summary - 3-13-25
	9 Nor Son Remaining Invoice
	10 Letter to HRA Board
	11 Accessibility standards
	12 Additional Information Re Property Management 3-13-25
	13 Agreement for Covenants and Restrictions - recorded - FHLB-Bremer
	14 Promissory Note - Kinney to MNTLC - 12plex
	15 Promissory Note Construction - Kinney - MNTLC - 12plex

	6. HTF Education Update Memo - 4-8-25
	6a. MN State Statute 462C.16 Housing Trust Funds for Local Housing Development
	Sec. 462C.16
	Subd. 1
	Subd. 2
	Subd. 3
	Subd. 4
	Subd. 5
	Subd. 6


	6b. CWC Ordinance 2001 Establishing a Housing Trust Fund
	7. Executive Director Memo - 4-8-25
	8. Housing Trust Fund Update 4-8-25
	9. Rehab Programs Report Memo April 2025



